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December 21, 2018
W.D. Knutson, President
Members of the Board of Directors
Yuima Municipal Water District
34928 Valley Center Road
Pauma Valley, CA 92061-0177
We are pleased to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the Yuima
Municipal Water District (hereinafter referred to as “the District”) for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2018. The purpose of the report is to provide the Board of Directors, our customers,
creditors, investors, and other interested parties with transparent financial information about the
District.
The CAFR was prepared by the District’s Finance Department following the guidelines set forth
by the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and in accordance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data
presented, and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests
with District management. We believe the data, as presented, is accurate in all material respects
and that it is presented in a manner that provides a fair representation of the financial position
and results of operation of the District and includes all disclosures necessary to enable readers to
gain the maximum understanding of the District’s financial activity.
The District’s policy requires that an independent certified public accounting firm, selected by
the Board, audit the basic financial statements on an annual basis. The goal of the independent
audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the District for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, are free of material misstatements. The independent audit
involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statement, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating overall financial statements presentation. The independent
auditor, Teaman, Ramirez and Smith Inc. have issued an unmodified (“clean”) opinion on the
District’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. The independent auditor’s
report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.
Management’s Discussion & Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s
report in the Financial Section and provides an overview, summary, and analysis of the basic
financial statements.
P.O. Box 177  34928 Valley Center Road  Pauma Valley, CA 92061-0177
Tel:(760) 742-3704  Fax: (760) 742-2069  Website: www.yuimamwd.com
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DISTRIC
CT FORM
MATION, ORGANIZ
ZATION AND HIST
TORY
The Disttrict was inccorporated on January 19, 1963 as a Californiaa special district by the State
Legislatu
ure, with an entitlement to import water
w
under
the prov
visions of the
t
Californ
nia Municip
pal Water
District Act of 191
11, section 71000 et.seeq. of the
Californiia Water Co
ode as amen
nded. The District was
formed to
t import Colorado
C
Riv
ver water to
o augment
local watter supplies.
The Disttrict is goveerned by a five-member
f
r Board of
Directorss (the “Bo
oard”), eleccted by geographical
location Prior to th
he District’ss formation, the sole
source off water was local ground
d water on the alluvial
fan and the San Lu
uis Rey Riveer basin. Fo
ollowing a
e
baack to 1949
9, coupled
period of drought extending
with incrreased agriccultural wateer demands, the water
table felll drastically,, and overdrrafts of the underlying
u
water bassin lowered the basin's level
l
as mucch as 85 feet,, forcing thee abandonmeent of some wells
and givin
ng rise to inccreased pum
mping costs. This condittion also proompted the ffiling of the SStrub
vs. Palom
mar Mutual Water Comp
pany suit to which the D
District is successor in innterest and w
which
limits thee withdrawaal of water fo
or use within
n the boundaaries of Impprovement D
District "A" ((IDA)
from thee San Luis Rey
R River upstream
u
of Cole Gradee Road to nno more thann 1,350-acree feet
annually. Yuima, as successor in
i interest to
t Palomar M
Mutual conttinues to opperate the foormer
ystem and properties
p
(now
(
knownn as Improovement Diistrict A) aas an
Palomar Mutual sy
dent water sy
ystem. Yuim
ma is responssible for adm
ministering IIDA's complliance with SStrub
independ
et al.
nd rates for sservice are set by the fivve-member B
Board
The Distrrict’s ordinaances, policiees, taxes, an
of Direcctors, who are
a elected by voters in their resspective geoographic divvisions, to serve
staggered
d four-year terms
t
on its Governing Board. Thee Board of D
Directors (Booard) governns the
District. The Board manages
m
thee District thrrough an apppointed Genneral Manageer. The Disttrict's
managem
ment team also
a
includess the Finance & Admiinistrative S
Services Mannager. Therre are
currently
y 11 full-timee and 1 part--time employ
yees workingg for the Disstrict.
p
herein includ
des informattion for acttivities and entities thaat are
The finaancial data presented
significan
ntly controllled by thee District an
nd for whiich the Boaard is prim
marily financcially
accountaable.

THE
H REPO
ORTING ENTITY AN
ND ITS SE
ERVICES
The Distrrict is a “rev
venue neutraal” public agency, meaniing that ratess are set based on projecctions
so that each
e
end-useer pays his or her fair share of thhe District’ss costs of w
water acquissition,
operation
n and mainteenance, bettterment, reneewal and reeplacement oof the publicc water facillities.
The distrrict is an “En
nterprise” district, in thaat operationns are financed and operrated in a maanner
similar to
o private bu
usiness enterrprises – wh
here the inteent is that thhe costs (exppenses, incluuding
depreciattion) of prov
viding goodss or servicess to the geneeral public oon a continuing basis is to be
ii

financed or recoverred primarily through user
u
chargees; or wheree periodic determinatioon of
revenues earned, ex
xpenses incu
urred, and/o
or net incoome is deem
med approppriate for caapital
maintenaance, public policy, man
nagement co
ontrol, accouuntability, oor other purpposes. Sincce the
District is
i in the busiiness of selliing water an
nd rendering services to an end user, it is requireed by
the State of Californiia to follow the
t enterprisse type of fuund accountinng. All propprietary fundds are
accounted for on a cost
c
of serviices or “cap
pital maintennance” meassurement foccus. This m
means
that all assets
a
and alll liabilities (whether cu
urrent, non-ccurrent or reestricted) asssociated witth the
activity are
a included in the balance sheet.
The Disttrict providees water an
nd fire proteection serviices. The D
District has establishedd and
maintains various sellf-balancing groups of acccounts to ennhance interrnal control and to furtheer the
attainmen
nt of other management
m
objectives. These group
ups of accounnts, which arre funds andd subfunds of the reporting
g entity, are identified in
n the Districtt’s books and records as:
 General
G
Fund
d
 Im
mprovementt District A Fund
F
 Fire Fund
The Gen
neral Fund accounts
a
forr all activity
y related to water operaations as weell as the geeneral
operation
ns of the Disstrict’s wateer operationss. Improvem
ment Districct A Fund acccounts for w
water
operation
ns, capital assets,
a
and constructionc
-in-progress transactionns related exxclusively too that
geograph
hically defin
ned area. The
T Fire Fun
nd acts as a pass-throuugh mechaniism for reveenues
collected
d on behalf of the Califfornia Deparrtment of Foorestry and Fire Protecttion (CalFiree), to
fund the fire protectio
on operation
ns.

CURR
RENT ECO
ONOMIC CONDITIIONS AND
D OUTLOO
OK
The curreent economy
y for FY 17//18 is fundam
mentally quiite strong. T
There has beeen a much llower
unemploy
yment rate, and higher numbers off job openinngs. Home vvalues increaased by 8.0%
% for
2017-18 with a projected increaase of 4.2% for the upccoming yearr. The mediaan home priice in
California is $5579,750 up ffrom $525,0000 from the prior
year. Consuumer confideence has hitt an 18 yearr high
for the fisscal year aand all econnomic indiccators
suggest thaat the econoomy is not far from thee alltime high oof 144.7 thatt was reached in 2000. A
As the
labor markket and stocks improvve, it seemss that
consumers are more ooptimistic aand upbeat aabout
my. The Sann Diego Couunty labor m
market
the econom
continues to improvve and iis at a 4.1%
unemploym
ment rate whhile Californnia is at 4.7%
% and
the total U
U.S. unemployment ratee is 4.1%. San
Diego
D
Counnty jobs havve also increased by 166,100
jobs over the yyear for nonnfarm emplloyment witth an
yment. For fiscal year 2017/18, Saan Diego Coounty
increase of 200 jobss in Agriculttural employ
only receeived 3.44” inches
i
of raiin. This is th
he second-drriest in San D
Diego’s recoorded historyy that
dates bacck to 1850. The outloo
ok for the 2018-19
2
yeaar is also prredicted to bbe below noormal
although an El Nino
o weather paattern is expected. It is aalso expecteed that by thhe year 20255, the
demand for
f water will increase by
b 46% as the populationn continues tto increase significantly..
iii

Over the last 55 yearrs, the Distriict has grow
wn to be a strrong agriculltural commuunity. Todaay the
District serves a population
p
of
o 1,824 th
hrough 338 service coonnections provided w
within
mately 21 squ
uare miles of
o northern San
S Diego C
County. Thee District opperates 44.1 m
miles
approxim
of water main, 24 prroductive weells, 10 potab
ble water tannks, and 2 A
Ag only reseervoirs. It apppears
unlikely that populattion growth will
w be a sig
gnificant facttor within thhe next five years. No m
major
housing developmen
nts are plann
ned, and eveen if a projeect were inittiated today, it would taake at
least fivee years to ob
btain the app
propriate zon
ning changees and complete construcction. Curreently,
there aree three activ
ve annexatiion projects in progresss at the Diistrict, withh one annexxation
expected
d to be com
mpleted by the end of the 2018-119 Fiscal Y
Year. These annexationns are
comprised of both neew populatiion and exiisting
populationn needing a more depenndable sourrce of
water. It i s estimated that these prrojects will bring
an additioon 212 doomestic metters. How
wever,
because tthese are doomestic meeters the Diistrict
estimates only a 40- aacre foot perr year increaase in
mated that ppopulation grrowth
water sale s. It is estim
will not e xceed 0.5%
% per year ovver the nextt five
years. Co nsidering thhat only abbout 2% of total
District ddemand is rresidential, the increasse in
populationn growth iss expected to be negliigible
with respeect to overaall water dem
mand during the
next few yeears.
In fiscal yeaar 2017-188 the Disstrict purchhased
approxim
mately 70% of its water from the San Diego County Water Authority (SDCWA oor the
“Authoriity”) and 1.3
3% of its waater from local water aggreements, aat a cost of $11.6 millioon, or
70.3% off the Districct’s operatin
ng expenses.. The Authoority importss most of its water from
m the
Metropollitan Water District of Southern
S
Caalifornia (ME
ET). For thhe fiscal yeaar ended Junne 30,
2018, thee District billled 338 cusstomers for 8,819-acre
8
ffeet of waterr, representinng an increaase in
sales of from
f
the prio
or fiscal yearr and the larg
gest volume of water solld over the last ten yearss.
p ten yeaars have ranged from 4,,959 to 8,8119-acre feet. Because a large
Water saales for the past
portion of
o our sales are due to
o agriculturee, sales are greatly affeected by weeather condittions,
making sales
s
projecttions difficu
ult. Because the Pauma Valley areaa received onnly 7.0 inchhes of
rainfall in fiscal yeaar 2017-18, Yuima
Y
saw a 38.2% inccrease in waater sales foor that same time
period.
o
As the chart to the right depicts, our
ural customeers purchased 91% of the
t
agricultu
District'ss total water sales in fisccal year 201
1718 while Wholesale and Domesttic sales maake
up the reemaining 8%
%. As waterr is one of the
t
largest production
p
costs
c
for faarmers in San
Diego County,
C
rapidly increasiing wholesaale
water raates have th
he potentiaal to severeely
affect th
he profitabiility of agrriculture. The
impact of
o these inccreases on the Districtt’s
customerrs has been mitigated
m
to a significantt
iv

extent by
b the District’s aggreessive effortts to devellop new soources of llower cost local
groundw
water. The siignificant prrice increasees for imporrted water aalong with ffluctuating w
water
sales hav
ve made it diifficult to pro
oject long-teerm sales dem
mand forecaasts.

LONG-TERM FINANCIAL
I
L PLANN
NING
The past several yeaars has been focused on rebuilding oour reservess after the im
mplementation of
GASB 68.
6
Continu
ued cost sav
ving measurres as well as increaseed sales helpp the Distriict to
successfu
ully increase our reserrves again this year. W
While the D
District rem
mains diligent in
rebuildin
ng these reserrves it can now
n turn its focus
f
to repllacing aging infrastructuure and increeasing
our suppllies; both loccally and im
mported.
Dependence on impo
orted water supplies
s
hav
ve increased due to increeased demannds that cannnot be
met by our
o local sup
pply. Water sales for Fiscal Year 22017-2018 ssaw a signifficant increaase of
38.2%. This
T increasee is a result of below av
verage rainfaall, and incrreased demand. Althouggh the
District’ss local produ
uction increaased by 26.4
4%, demandd was such tthat the Disttrict also reaalized
an increaase of 35.4%
% in importeed water salees as well. The District still strivess to find waays to
increase their local su
upply but must
m remain cognizant
c
off weather connditions (redduce rainfalll) and
Act. Whilee any
the futurre implicatiions of the Sustainablle Ground Water Mannagement A
restrictions imposed from this acct are in the distant futurre, the Distriict must beggin addressinng the
reduction
n of local su
upply when planning
p
faccility improvvement now
w. Currently the Districtt is in
the desig
gn stages of a total rehab
bilitation its Forebay faccility, our solle source forr imported w
water,
that will bring an add
ditional 10 cubic
c
feet peer second floow to the disstrict. The D
District is seeeking
o cover the portion
p
of th
he project th
hat will nott be funded by Capital Project reseerves.
grants to
Addition
nally, The Saan Diego County Water Authority haas agreed too fund constrruction of a flow
control facility
f
to provide an altternative sou
urce of wateer for both Y
Yuima and thhe Valley C
Center
Municipaal Water Disstrict for use during a No
orth County emergency sstorage evennt.

ACCOMPL
LISHMENT
TS IN FISC
CAL YEA
AR
2017--2018
The 20
017-2018 fo
ocused maiinly on th
he conversioon and
implemen
ntation of a new finan
ncial softwaare. The D
District’s
twenty-eight year old
d financial so
oftware prog
gram, while tailored
specificaally to our needs,
n
was antiquated and with teechnical
support from the software
s
co
ompany sin
nce the closing of
Datastreaam in Decem
mber of 2017
7. The conv
version is sccheduled
to be com
mpleted by December
D
20
018. This fisscal year the District
also com
mpleted thee Rincon Ranch
R
Road
d project aand the
replacem
ment of severral well pump
ps & motorss.

v

FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
INTERNAL CONTROLS
District management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a system of internal controls
designed to ensure that the District’s assets are protected from loss, theft, or misuse, and to
ensure that adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the presentation of its Financial
Statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Internal controls are
designed to provide reasonable assurance that these objectives are met as effectively as possible.
The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of maintaining the system of
internal controls should not exceed benefits likely to be derived, and that the evaluation of costs
and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. All internal control evaluations
occur within the above framework.
Management believes that activities presented within this report comply with financial, legal, and
contractual obligations, as prudent fiduciary responsibility requires. In addition, we believe that
the District’s internal accounting controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable
assurance of proper recording of financial transactions. During the year, additional internal
control improvements to the accounting software have been made, and we continue to identify
ways in which we can strengthen our procedures.

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM
The Finance department is responsible for providing financial and administrative services for the
District, including financial accounting and reporting, payroll and accounts payable disbursement
functions, cash, investments and debt management, budgeting, grant administration, purchasing,
data processing, customer billing, processing of customer payment, customer service, internal
auditing, administrative services, human resources, and special financial analyses. The District
reports its activities as an enterprise fund, which is used to account for operations like business
enterprises, where the provision of services is financed or recovered primarily through user
charges.

BUDGETING CONTROLS
The District views the budget as an essential tool for proper financial management. The District
adopts a budget annually to outline major elements of the forthcoming year’s operating and
capital plans and to allocate funding required for those purposes. It is designed and presented for
the general needs of the District, its staff, and its customers. It is a comprehensive and, for the
most part, a balanced financial plan that features District services, resources and their allocation,
financial policies, and other useful information to allow users to gain a general understanding of
the District’s financial status and future. The District’s operating and capital budgets are
approved by the Board of Directors. Board approval is required for any increase in
appropriations. Actual expenditures are then compared to these appropriations each month and
are distributed to all department heads monthly and to the Board quarterly. Annual operating
water user rates and charges are derived from the annual operating budget and are based on
historical seasonal demand, and other internal and external factors impacting the budget. The
District maintains two sets of user rates and charges to account for the differing entitlement of
the respective geographic areas to local water. One set is for the General District and the other
for Improvement District A. Higher pumping charges apply in higher elevations throughout the
District.
vi

CASH MANAGEM
MENT
marily Califorrnia Governnment Code Section 536600 et
The Disttrict is regulaated by Statte law (prim
seq.) as to
t the types of securitiess in which itt can invest iits cash asseets. In addittion, the Boaard of
Directorss
annually
adopts
an
investmeent policy that is gen
nerally
more resstrictive than
n the State codes.
The Diistrict’s in
nvestment policy
governs the cash managemen
nt and
investmeent of all District
D
fundss. The
standard practice off the Districtt is to
maintain an apprropriate balance
between safety, liquiidity, and yiield of
its investtments whilee meeting required
expenditu
ures, and conforming
c
to all
applicablle State law
ws, the Disstrict’s
investmeent policy, and
a
prudentt cash
managem
ment principlles.
For the fiscal
f
year 20
017-18, the District’s fix
xed income investment portfolio coonsisted prim
marily
of short-term securitties with an average maaturity of 3665 days or 112 months. These secuurities
included the State-m
managed Loccal Agency Investment
I
F
Fund (LAIF
F) and variouus Certificattes of
(
Deposit (CD’s).
At June 30,
3 2018, thee District’s cash
c
assets to
otaled $4.4 m
million dollaars. The diveersification oof the
portfolio is shown in
i the chartt to the abo
ove. These cash balances are alloocated to vaarious
restricted
d funds.

RISK MANAGEM
MENT
m
of th
he Joint Pow
wers Insurancce Authorityy (JPIA), a poooled
In 1996, the District became a member
y the Associaation of Caliifornia Wateer Agencies that providees the
insurancee program developed by
District’ss coverage fo
or general liability insurrance, properrty insurancee, employee bonds, and other
blanket coverage.
c
In
n 2003 the District
D
addeed the workeer’s compennsation coverage under JJPIA.
During fiscal
f
year 2017-18,
2
the District con
ntinued its pproactive liaability risk m
managementt role
through careful mon
nitoring of losses
l
and designing
d
annd implemennting prograams to miniimize
risks. In addition, management
m
t analyzes workers’
w
com
mpensation issues by m
monitoring work
condition
ns, and orgaanizing and
d implementting safety training proograms to rreduce employee
exposuree to hazards. The Distriict proudly maintains
m
ann excellent low loss hisstory in all JPIA
programss.

PENSSION AND
D DEFERR
RED COM
MPENSATIION PLAN
NS
The Distrrict providess two complementary rettirement plaan programs for employeees. The firsst is a
defined benefit pension plan th
hrough the California Public Empployees’ Reetirement Syystem
RS). Upon reetirement, District
D
employees are enntitled to a specified reetirement beenefit.
(CalPER
The plan is more fullly described in Note 6 to
o the Financiial Statemennts.
vii

In addition, the District has adopted a Deferred Compensation Plan in accordance with Section
457(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. All contributions to the Deferred Compensation Plan are
employee contributions. The employees are not liable for income taxes on amounts deferred until
the funds are withdrawn. The deferred compensation plan was amended May 26, 2009, in
accordance with recent changes in the Internal Revenue code. In accordance with these and
previous Internal Revenue code revisions, all assets in the Plans are held in trust for the exclusive
benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries and therefore are not recognized in the
accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2018, 4 current employees were participating
in the 457(b) plan with accumulated assets from past and current employees totaling
$595,977.18.

AWARDS
The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) of the United States and Canada
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Yuima Municipal
Water District for its comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2017. This is the tenth year that the District has achieved this prestigious award. In
order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a District must publish an easy to read and
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both
generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. A Certificate of
Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current comprehensive
annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements
and we are respectfully submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another
certificate.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCE DEPARTMENT
This financial report is designed to provide the Board, customers, creditors, and investors with a
general overview of the District’s financial condition. Should you have any questions regarding
the content of this report, please contact Amy Reeh, Yuima Municipal Water District’s Finance
& Administrative Services Manager, at (760) 742-3704 or amy@yuimamwd.com.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS
The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the contribution of the
Finance Department and our independent auditor, Teaman, Ramirez and Smith, Inc. We would
also like to particularly to thank the Board of Directors for their continued dedication supporting
the highest level of prudent fiscal management.
Respectfully Submitted:

_______________________
Amy Reeh
Finance & Administrative Services Manager

viii

Yuima Municipal Water District

ix

PRINCIPAL OFFICIALS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
W.D. “Bill” Knutson, President
Ron W. Watkins, Vice President
Don Broomell, Director
Roland Simpson, Director
Lynn “Laney” Villalobos, Director

GENERAL MANAGER
Richard Williamson

ASSISTANT GENERAL MANAGER / FINANCE &
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES MANAGER
Amy Reeh

GENERAL COUNSEL
Stradling, Yocca, Carlson and Rauth

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
TEAMAN, RAMIREZ & SMITH, INC.

Yuima Municipal Water District
34928 Valley Center Road,
Pauma Valley, CA 92061
760.742.3704 ph
760.742.2069 fax
www.Yuimamwd.com

x

A

Yuima Municipal Water District

xi

This page was intentionally left blank

Financial Section

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Photo courtesy of skygolĩlog

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Yuima Municipal Water District
Yuima, California

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each
major fund of the Yuima Municipal Water District (the “District”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the District’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.
Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position
of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the District, as of June 30, 2018, and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Richard A. Teaman, CPA

David M. Ramirez, CPA

Javier H. Carrillo, CPA

Bryan W͘Daugherty, CPA Joshua :͘Calhoun, CPA

4201 Brockton AveŶƵĞ Suite 100Riverside CA 92501 951.274.9500d> 951.274.7828 FAX www.trscpas.com

Emphasis of Matter
Change in Accounting Principle
As described in Note 1B to the financial statements, the District adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards
Board Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. Our opinion
is not modified with respect to this matter.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis
and the required supplementary information on pages 3-11 and 52-57 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the District’s
basic financial statements. The introductory section and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and
are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 21, 2018, on our
consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Riverside, California
December 21, 2018
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018
This section of the Yuima Municipal Water District's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) presents
Management's Discussion and Analysis of the District's financial performance for fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, and
includes the Governmental Accounting Standard Board's (GASB) enhanced financial reporting requirements. We offer
readers of the Yuima Municipal Water District’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the
financial position and results of operations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.
Included in this section are:
 Financial Statement Overview;
 Analysis of Financial Position and Results of Operations;
 Overview of the Accompanying Basic Financial Statements;
The Letter of Transmittal can be found on pages i-vi and should be read in conjunction with the audited financial
statements. The audited financial statements are located in the section following the MD&A. All amounts, unless
otherwise indicated, are expressed in dollars.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OVERVIEW - FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
Statement of Net Position - The Statement of Net Position presents the District's financial position relating to assets,
liabilities, and deferred outflows/inflows of resources. Assets and deferred outflows in excess of liabilities and deferred
inflows (Net Position) for fiscal year 2017-18 increased $1,826,754 over fiscal year 2016-17, from $14,266,264 to
$16,093,018, which correlates to the increase as presented on the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Net Position. Of this amount, $3,716,041 may be used to meet the District's ongoing obligation to citizens and
creditors.
Yuima Municipal Water District Net Position

Current and other assets
Capital assets

Governmental
Activities (Fire Protection)
2018
2017
$
227,290 $
177,620
-

Business-type
Activities (Water Operations)
2018
2017
$
6,290,072 $ 4,347,434
13,756,777
13,740,516

Total
2018
2017
$ 6,517,362 $ 4,525,054
13,756,777
13,740,516

Total Assets

$

227,290

$

177,620

$

20,046,849

$ 18,087,950

$ 20,274,139

$ 18,265,570

Deferred Outflows of Resources

$

-

$

-

$

1,394,126

$ 1,479,211

$ 1,394,126

$ 1,479,211

Long-term liabilities outstanding
Other liabilities
Total liabilities

$

$
$

-

$

$

-

$

4,053,719
1,350,989
5,404,708

$ 4,025,069
1,160,443
$ 5,185,512

$ 4,053,719
1,350,989
$ 5,404,708

$ 4,025,069
1,160,443
$ 5,185,512

Deferred Inflows of Resources

$

-

$

-

$

170,539

$

$

$

$

227,290
227,290

$

177,620
177,620

$

12,376,977
3,488,751
15,865,728

Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net position

$

$

$

293,005

$ 12,192,571
1,896,073
$ 14,088,644

170,539

$ 12,376,977
227,290
3,488,751
$ 16,093,018

293,005

$ 12,192,571
177,620
1,896,073
$ 14,266,264

Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position - The Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position
accounts for all activities during the fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in
this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g. uncollected taxes and
earned but unused vacation leave). This statement measures the success of the District’s operations during the
reporting period and can be used to assess whether or not the District has successfully recovered all of its costs through
its user fees and other charges. This statement also measures the District’s solvency and ability to meet its financial
commitments.
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ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESULT OF OPERATIONS
The District’s overall financial position continues to be affected by the implementation of the GASB 68 requirement to
begin recording the Unfunded Accrued Liability of the District’s pension plan. However, increased water sales and
continued implementation of several cost saving measures resulted in the ability to increase our reserve balance in the
2017-18 fiscal year.
Analysis of Net Position – Net Position is the difference between assets acquired, owned, and operated by the District
and amounts owed (liabilities). In accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), capital assets
acquired through purchase, or construction by the District, are recorded at historical cost. Capital assets contributed by
developers are recorded at developers’ construction cost. Net Position represents the District’s net worth including, but
not limited to, capital contributions received to date and all investment in capital assets since formation. Net Position
helps answer the following question: “Is the District, as a whole, better or worse off as a result of this year’s activities?”
As reported in the Statements of Net Position, the net position increased between fiscal years ending 2017 and 2018
from $14,266,264 to $16,093,018. Net investment in capital assets increased $184,406, and unrestricted net position
increased $1,592,678.
Yuima Municipal Water District Change in Net Position
Governmental
Activities (Fire Protection)
2018
2017
Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services
Operating Grants and Contributions
Capital Grants and Contributions
General Revenues:
Property Taxes
Investment Earnings
Other

$ 12,408,319
-

$ 17,584,985
184,258
-

$ 12,460,831
5,316
-

46
-

30
-

429,867
51,431
124,642

416,525
29,495
10,939

429,867
51,477
124,642

416,525
29,525
10,939

Total Revenues

70,727

57,858

18,304,502

12,865,278

18,375,229

12,923,136

Expenses:
Fire Protection
Water Enterprise
Total Expenses

21,057
21,057

288
288

16,643,497
16,643,497

11,559,426
11,559,426

21,057
16,643,497
16,664,554

288
11,559,426
11,559,714

49,670
177,620

57,570
120,050

1,661,005
14,088,644
116,079
$ 15,865,728

1,305,852
12,782,792

1,710,675
14,266,264
116,079
$ 16,093,018

1,363,422
12,902,842

227,290

$

2017

$ 17,520,725
177,837
-

$

64,260
6,421
-

Total
2018

52,512
5,316
-

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position
Net Position - Beginning
Prior Period Adjustment
Net Position - Ending

$

Business-type
Activities (Water Operations)
2018
2017

$

177,620

$ 14,088,644

$ 14,266,264

ANALYSIS OF GOVERNMENTAL FUND AND GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES – FIRE FUND
The District’s fire protection fund to the government-wide financial statements has no reconciling items from the
modified accrual to a full accrual basis. The information below provides an analysis of the increases or decreases in the
activities for the governmental fund and governmental activities since the information on both the government-wide
and fund statements reflect the same reported figures.
The key factors in the increase of the Fire Protection Activities net position and fund balance is as follows:


The Fire Protection revenues totaling $70,727 were sufficient to cover the expenditures of $21,057 resulting in
an increase in net position totaling $49,670 for the fiscal year. This large increase is due to the State of
California covering the costs to keep our local Cal Fire Station open during the non-fire season.
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ANALYSIS OF
O PROPRIET
TARY FUND
D AND BUSIN
NESS-TYPE A CTIVITIES
S – WATER OPERATION
NS
T
The District’s proprietary fund providees the same type
t
of inforrmation found
d in the govvernment-widee financial
sstatements, bu
ut in more dettail. Below iss an analysis of
o the increasees or decreasees in the activvities for the p
proprietary
fu
fund and busin
ness-type activ
vities.
S
Statement of Revenues, Expenses,
E
and
d Changes in
n Net Positio
on - The Stattement of Reevenues, Expeenses, and
C
Changes in Neet Position sum
mmarizes the District’s operrations duringg the year. In accordance w
with Generally
y Accepted
A
Accounting Prrincipals (GA
AAP), revenuees are recogniized (recorded
d) when servvices are provvided, and exp
penses are
rrecognized wh
hen incurred. Operating rev
venues and exp
penses are relaated to the Diistrict's core acctivities. Non
n-operating
rrevenues and expenses
e
are not
n directly related to the co
ore activities o
of the Districtt (e.g. interest income, property taxes,
aand interest ex
xpenses). The operating marrgin for the yeear ended Junee 30, 2018 of $197,189 is co
ombined with total nono
operating reveenues of $1,355,409, non-op
perating expen
nses of $69,4300 and capital contributions of $177,837 tto arrive at
the increase in
n net position of $1,661,005
5. The increasee in net positiion is added to
o the adjusted
d beginning neet position
o
of $14,204,723
3 to arrive at th
he ending net position total of $15,865,7228 as of June 330, 2018.
C
Change in Net Position & Analysis
A
of Sttatement of Revenues,
R
Exp
penses, and C
Changes in Net Position
T
The District's total revenuess of $18,126,6
665 for the 2017-18 fiscal yeear is comprissed of $16,771
1,256 for Operating and
$$1,355,409 forr Non-Operating Revenues. The annual revenue
r
increaased $5,261,3990 or 40.8% fr
from the prior fiscal year
d
due to multiplle factors. Th
he largest incrrease was with
hin the Operaating Revenuees category an
nd is directly associated
w
with increased
d water sales.
D
Details of the total
t
increase in revenues arre as follows:



Water Sales includin
ng associated customer feess
and ch
harges increaseed by $5,025,9
990, or 42.8%
%
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.
2
Other Non-Operatin
ng Revenues increased by
y
7 to 2017-18.
$235,400, or 21.0%, from 2016-17

T
The District’s total expensees increased by
b $5,084,074
4,
o
or 43.9% in 20
017-18, from $11,559,423
$
to
o $16,643,497
7.
T
The largest in
ncrease occurred within the
t
Operatingg
E
Expenses; speccifically, the categories
c
of Cost of Wateer
S
Sold and Gen
neral and Ad
dministrative. The Cost of
o
W
Water Sold in
ncreased by $4,075,944
$
or 53.8%. Thiis
in
ncrease was specifically due to the increaased purchasees
o
of imported wa
ater to meet in
ncreased demaands in sales.
D
Details of the total
t
increase in expenses arre as follows:




Cost of
o water sold including pu
umping, waterr
treatm
ment, transmisssion, customeer service and
d
genera
al plant and depreciation
d
costs increased
d
by $4
4,075,944 or 53.8%, due to increased
d
water sales.
Generral and Admiinistrative cossts realized an
n
increa
ase of $785,0
068, or 75.4
4%, with thee
largest amount occcurring within
n the Benefitss
ory. This is due
d
to the in
ncrease in thee
catego
District’s
Unfun
nded
PERS
S
Liability
y
ng from the reduction of thee
adjusttments resultin
discou
unt rate.
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position
Yuima General District and IDA - Combined
Proprietary Fund
2018
2017

Increase/
(Decrease)

Percent
Change

Operating revenues:
Water sales & Pumping charges
Other customer fees and charges

$15,918,051
853,205

$11,025,249
720,017

$4,892,802
133,188

44.4%
18.5%

16,771,256

11,745,266

5,025,990

42.8%

11,651,917
1,961,876
132,331
219,407
131,919
101,014
1,826,413
549,190
16,574,067

7,575,973
1,715,823
113,108
306,131
111,908
78,270
1,041,345
546,462
11,489,021

4,075,944
246,053
19,223
(86,724)
20,011
22,744
785,068
2,728
5,085,046

53.8%
14.3%
17.0%
-28.3%
17.9%
29.1%
75.4%
0.5%
44.3%

197,189

256,245

(59,056)

-23.0%

51,431
1,179,336
124,642
1,355,409

29,490
1,079,580
10,939
1,120,009

21,941
99,756
113,703
235,400

74.4%
9.2%
1039.4%
21.0%

Other non-operating expenses

27,166

23,851

3,315

13.9%

Interest on long term debt
Total non-operating expenses

42,263
69,429

46,551
70,402

(4,288)
(973)

-9.2%
-1.4%

1,483,169

1,305,852

177,317

13.6%

177,837

-

177,837

100.0%

1,661,006

1,305,852

355,154

27.2%

14,088,644

12,782,792

1,305,852

10.2%

116,079

-

116,079

100.0%

14,204,723

12,782,792

1,421,931

11.1%

$15,865,729

$14,088,644

$1,777,085

12.6%

Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:
Cost of water sold
Pumping and energy costs
Water Treatment
Transmission and distribution
Customer services
General Plant
General and administrative
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Non-operating revenues:
Investment earnings
Property taxes,assmts,conn fees & leases
Other non-operating revenues
Total non-operating revenues
Non-operating expenses:

Revenues over/(under) Expenditures

Capital Contributions
Change in net position
Net position, Beginning
Prior Period Adjustment
Net Position, Beginning - As Restated
Total Net Position, End of year
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Position
Yuima - General District
Increase/
(Decrease)

Proprietary Fund
2018
2017

Percent
Change

Operating revenues:
Water sales & Pumping charges
Other customer fees and charges
Total operating revenues

$9,222,548
393,265

$5,970,459
313,538

$3,252,089
79,727

54.5%
25.4%

9,615,813

6,283,997

3,331,816

53.0%

7,430,243
539,710
36,130
94,469
51,488
47,877
899,663
183,902
9,283,482

5,099,402
441,425
24,328
163,912
43,898
40,013
506,700
187,212
6,506,890

2,330,841
98,285
11,802
(69,443)
7,590
7,864
392,963
(3,310)
2,776,592

45.7%
22.3%
48.5%
-42.4%
17.3%
19.7%
77.6%
-1.8%
42.7%

(222,893)

555,224

-249.1%

4,268
887,699
10,939
902,906

9,006
94,604
64,331
167,941

211.0%
10.7%
588.1%
18.6%

Operating expenses:
Cost of water sold
Pumping and energy costs
Water Treatment
Transmission and distribution
Customer services
General Plant
General and administrative
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

332,331

Non-operating revenues:
Investment earnings
Property taxes,assmts,conn fees & leases
Other non-operating revenues
Total non-operating revenues

13,274
982,303
75,270
1,070,847

Non-operating expenses:
Other non-operating expenses

12,593

(15,652)

28,245

180.5%

Interest on long term debt
Total non-operating expenses

12,593

74
(15,578)

(74)
28,171

-100.0%
-180.8%

1,390,585

695,591

694,994

99.9%

177,837

-

177,837

100.0%

Change in net position

1,568,422

695,591

872,831

125.5%

Net position, Beginning of year

3,255,884

2,560,293

695,591

27.2%

58,488

-

58,488

100.0%

$4,882,794

$3,255,884

$1,626,910

50.0%

Revenues over/(under) Expenditures

Capital Contributions

Prior Period Adjustment
Total Net Position, End of year
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position
Improvement District A
Increase/
(Decrease)

Proprietary Fund
2018
2017

Percent
Change

Operating revenues:
Water sales & Pumping charges
Other customer fees and charges

$6,695,503
459,940

$5,054,790
406,479

$1,640,713
53,461

32.5%
13.2%

7,155,443

5,461,269

1,694,174

31.0%

4,221,674
1,422,165
96,202
125,554
80,431
52,521
926,750
365,288
7,290,585

2,476,571
1,274,398
88,780
142,219
68,010
38,257
534,645
359,250
4,982,131

1,745,103
147,767
7,422
(16,665)
12,421
14,264
392,105
6,038
2,308,454

70.5%
11.6%
8.4%
-11.7%
18.3%
37.3%
73.3%
1.7%
46.3%

(135,142)

479,138

(614,280)

-128.2%

38,157
197,033
49,372
284,562

25,222
191,881
217,103

12,935
5,152
49,372
67,459

51.3%
2.7%
100.0%
31.1%

Other non-operating expenses

14,574

39,503

(24,929)

-63.1%

Interest on long term debt
Total non-operating expenses

42,263
56,837

46,477
85,980

(4,214)
(29,143)

-9.1%
-33.9%

Revenues over/(under) Expenditures

92,583

610,261

(517,678)

-84.8%

-

-

92,583

610,261

10,832,760

10,222,499

610,261

6.0%

57,591

-

57,591

100.0%

$10,982,934

$10,832,760

$150,174

1.4%

Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:
Cost of water sold
Pumping and energy costs
Water Treatment
Transmission and distribution
Customer services
General Plant
General and administrative
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Non-operating revenues:
Investment earnings
Property taxes,assmts,conn fees & leases
Other non-operating revenues
Total non-operating revenues
Non-operating expenses:

Capital Contributions
Change in net position
Net position, Beginning of year
Prior Period Adjustment
Total Net Position, End of year
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(517,678)

-84.8%

Statement of Cash Flows - The Statements of Cash Flows present the amounts of cash provided or used by the
District's operating, financing, and investment activities during the reporting period. Every cash flow has been
categorized as one of the following activities: operating, noncapital financing, capital and related financing, or
investing. The primary purpose of this report is to provide information to the general readers about cash inflows and
outflows which occurred during the reporting fiscal year. The Cash Flow statement helps the readers to answer the
following questions: “Where did cash come from; what was cash used for and what was the change in cash during the
fiscal year?” The total of these categories for the year ended June 30, 2018, represents an increase in cash and cash
equivalents of $589,095 which is combined with beginning cash and cash equivalents of $2,291,526 to arrive at ending
cash and cash equivalents of $2,880,621.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 20 - 51 of
this report. The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 12 - 14 of this report.

OTHER INFORMATION
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required
supplementary information concerning the Yuima Municipal Water District’s progress in funding its obligation to provide
pension and OPEB benefits to its employees. Also included is the required budget to actual schedule of the fire
protection fund. Required supplementary information can be found on pages 52 - 57 of this report.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND CAPITAL PROJECTS
The District’s Capital Assets in service at June 30, 2018 totaled $24,741,040 less $10,984,263 of accumulated
depreciation, for a net book value of $13,756,777. Additional information on capital assets can be found in Note 4 to
the financial statements. Capital Asset additions being depreciated totaled $383,863 and included the following:

Capital Asset Additions
Yuima
Annexation Fees
$
Source of Supply
General Plant Additions
Pumping Plant
Water Treatment
Pipelines (Transmission & Distribution)
Total
$

34,509
5,317
13,430
53,256

IDA
$

$

17,348
66,991
246,268
330,607

Total
$

$

17,348
34,509
72,308
259,698
383,863

Deletions of Capital Assets being depreciated totaled $30,009 for retirement of equipment replacements. Also included
in the total reported on the Statement of Net Position is $466,672 in construction-in-progress, which reflects capital
projects in various stages of completion. As of June 30, 2018, the following capital projects were in progress.
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Construction in Progress
Yuima
GIS Mapping Project
SCADA Upgrade Project - CIP
Forebay Rehab Project

$

Financial Software Conversion
Total

$

IDA
GIS Mapping Project
Zone 4 Tank Storm Repair

$

New IDA Well #51
Total
Total

3,849
26,874
9,964
98,083
138,770

7,364
39,081

$

281,457
327,902

$

466,672

The District’s capital assets were financed through a combination of current revenues, available reserves from the
capital fund and capacity (connection fee) fund, and debt issuances. The District collects capacity fees from new
development. These fees are restricted and used exclusively to provide capacity to service new development and fund
future construction of facilities identified in the District’s Master Plan. As of June 30, 2018 all capacity fees collected
in prior years have been used for this purpose. Growth in the area is slow to none. The District does not expect any
change in growth in the area for the next few years. The District’s CIP is expected to fluctuate from year to year
depending on the construction cost of infrastructure projects that are currently under construction or are in the
planning stages.

LONG-TERM DEBT
At the end of the current fiscal year, the Yuima Municipal Water District had total debt outstanding of $4,053,719
including $207,970 which is the portion that is due within one year. Also included in the total amount is $142,183 of
Compensated Absences. The debt associated with Capital Projects was incurred to finance the replacement of several
tanks which includes Reservoir 8 with a capacity of 1.7 million gallons and pump station as well as the Zone 4 Tank
with a capacity of 1.2 million gallons. The remaining debt was incurred as a result of the required implementation of
GASB 68. Additional information on long-term debt can be found in Notes 1 & 5 to the financial statements.
The District’s outstanding bond indebtedness as of June 30, 2018 is as follows:
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018
Long-term Debt

Description

District

Year
Issued

Final
Fixed
Maturity Interest
Date
Rate

Total
Debt

Debt Outstanding (Audited)
As of June 30, 2018
Current
Long Term

Compensated Absences

Yuima/IDA

$

35,546

Net Pension Liability
Tank 8 and Pump Station
Zone 4 Tank
Station 1 SDG&E On-Bill
Station 4 SDG&E On-Bill
Total

Yuima/IDA
IDA
IDA
IDA
IDA

$
$
$
$
$
$

115,536
36,974
12,039
7,875
207,970

2007
2013
2013
2013

$ 1,500,000
$ 900,000
$ 111,364
$
75,125
$ 2,586,489
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2022
2033
2022
2023

2.65%
3.55%
0.00%
0.00%

$

106,637

$ 2,531,736
$ 429,193
$ 711,839
$
38,124
$
28,220
$ 3,845,749

Total
$

142,183

$ 2,531,736
$ 544,729
$ 748,813
$
50,163
$
36,095
$ 4,053,719

FUTURE INFRASTRUCTURE PLANNING
The future water supply of the District is primarily secured through the importation of water purchased from the San
Diego County Water Authority (“SDCWA”). Approximately seventy percent (70%) of the District’s water supply was
provided through the intertie with the SDCWA for imported water. Groundwater production will continue to be a
challenge for the District, and most water agencies in the State that have access to groundwater, as the recently enacted
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (“SGMA”) is being implemented and will require water agencies in basins
which are not in balance to reduce their pumping in conformance with the SGMA objective of realizing sustainable
groundwater basins; the primary effect being the reduction in the utilization of groundwater wells to achieve and
maintain the balance between groundwater recharge and withdraws. The District is working with the SDCWA and
the Valley Center Municipal Water District to provide for the six to eight (6-8) cubic feet per second of additional
supply to the YMWD service area for use as needed to supplement current supplies through the present intertie to the
SDCWA. The additional imported water supply will be available for the summer, 2020.
In the meantime, the District continues to focus on development of local supplies to supplement the imported water
resource, and to utilize the typically lower cost of local supplies to meld with the cost of imported supplies to keep
water rates as low as possible. This is a continuing challenge given the low amounts of rainfall in recent years. The
District is committed to providing safe, reliable, sustainable supplies of water for the District and adjoining areas as it is
the opinion of management that the most economic and realistic ability to develop local supplies is to do so in
partnership with the Indian Reservations that adjoin the District, providing for reliable supplies for the Indian Bands
while optimizing the utilization of local water resources for the benefit of all water users and ratepayers in the basin.

ECONOMIC FACTORS
The District derives funding for operations from customer rates, fees, and charges. To the extent required, the District
has the ability to generate additional funding resources through rate adjustments to cover the costs for providing water
services. The District sets its rates annually based upon anticipated consumption.
A significant reduction in
consumption could have an adverse effect on the District’s financial position. Listed below are a few highlights of the
economic factors that impact our District.


The District sold 26.0% of total water delivered during the fiscal year 2017/18 to one customer. This same
customer has been one of the top ten water consumers in the District for the last 20 years.



The District realized a $1,661,005 operating gain during fiscal year 2017-18 as compared to a $1,305,852
operating gain during fiscal year 2016-17.



In fiscal year 2017-18, the District purchased 70% of its water sold from the San Diego County Water
Authority, this is the same percentage as in fiscal year 2016-17.



The District has invested significantly in diversifying its water supply by increasing its local supply through
additional wells and local well agreements to reduce its reliance on the high cost imported water supply from
the San Diego County Water Authority. Keeping the District’s financial position strong will be critical in the
future as increased capital spending will be required.



The District has implemented several cost containment strategies to mitigate pension burdens on the District.
Yuima MWD employees are now paying 100% of the employee’s portion (8%) of the District’s pension costs.
Additionally, through attrition, and job description redevelopment the district has been able to eliminate or
replace higher paying positions to realize costs savings.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
This financial report is designed to provide the District’s rate payers, bond investors and other interested parties with a
general overview of the District’s finances, and to demonstrate the District’s accountability for the money it received
and the stewardship of the facilities it maintains. If you have any questions about this report or need additional
financial information, contact the Yuima Municipal Water District’s Finance Department, Amy Reeh, Finance &
Administrative Services Manager, 34928 Valley Center Road, Pauma Valley, Ca. 92061, or call (760) 742-3704, or
send inquiries to our website at www.yuimamwd.com.
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Yuima Municipal Water District
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2018
Governmental
Activities
ASSETS
Cash and Investments
Accounts Receivable
Taxes Receivable
Interest Receivable
Internal Balances
Inventories
Prepaids
Net OPEB Asset
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated:
Land and Improvements
Construction in Progress
Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation:
General Plant
Source of Supply
Pumping Plant
Water Treatment Plant
Transmission and Distribution Plant

$

13,179
6,938
547

Business-type
Activities
$

206,626

Total Assets

227,290

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension Related Items
OPEB Related Items
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

0

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Deposits and Other Accrued Liabilities
Interest Payable
Long-term Liabilities:
Due Within One Year
Due in More Than One Year
Total Liabilities

0

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension Related Items
OPEB Related Items
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

0

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for Fire Protection
Unrestricted

4,416,589
1,449,460
5,291
20,981
(206,626)
455,430
33,832
115,115

Total
$

1,301,457
466,672

1,301,457
466,672

337,819
6,719,986
1,873,160
120,599
2,937,084

337,819
6,719,986
1,873,160
120,599
2,937,084

20,046,849

20,274,139

1,247,943
146,183

1,247,943
146,183

1,394,126

1,394,126

1,251,612
80,554
18,823

1,251,612
80,554
18,823

207,970
3,845,749

207,970
3,845,749

5,404,708

5,404,708

169,062
1,477

169,062
1,477

170,539

170,539

12,376,977

12,376,977
227,290
3,488,751

227,290
3,488,751

Total Net Position

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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227,290

$

4,429,768
1,456,398
5,838
20,981
0
455,430
33,832
115,115

15,865,728

$

16,093,018

Yuima Municipal Water District
Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Functions/Programs
Governmental Activities:
Fire Protection

Expenses
$

Business-type Activities:
Water Enterprise
Total Primary Government

Charges
for
Services

21,057

$

64,260

16,643,497
$

16,664,554

Program Revenues
Operating
Grants and
Contributions
$

6,421

Capital
Grants and
Contributions
$

17,520,725
$

17,584,985

177,837
$

6,421

$

General Revenues:
Unrestricted Intergovernmental
Investment Earnings
Other
Total General Revenues
Change in Net Position
Total Net Position - Beginning, As Previously Reported
Prior Period Adjustment
Total Net Position - Beginning, As Restated
Total Net Position - Ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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177,837

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position
Governmental
Activities
$

49,624

Business-type
Activities
$

$

49,624

1,055,065

1,055,065

49,624

1,055,065

1,104,689

46

429,867
51,431
124,642

429,867
51,477
124,642

46

605,940

605,986

49,670

1,661,005

1,710,675

177,620

14,088,644

14,266,264

116,079

116,079

14,204,723

14,382,343

177,620
$

Total

227,290

$

15,865,728

$

16,093,018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Yuima Municipal Water District
Balance Sheet
Governmental Fund
June 30, 2018
Fire Protection
ASSETS
Cash and Investments
Accounts Receivable
Taxes Receivable
Due from Other Funds
Total Assets
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable

$

13,179
6,938
547
206,626

$

227,290

$

0

Total Liabilities

0

Fund Balance:
Restricted for Fire Protection

227,290

Total Fund Balance

227,290

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

Fund Balance of Governmental Fund

$

227,290

$

227,290

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Position
are different because:
Reconciling items to the Statement of Net Position

0

Net Position of Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

$

15

227,290

Yuima Municipal Water District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Governmental Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2018
Fire Protection
REVENUES
Fire Protection Special Tax
Mitigation Fees
Investment Earnings
Miscellaneous Revenues

$

Total Revenues

52,663
11,597
46
6,421
70,727

EXPENDITURES
General and Administrative
Fire Protection

250
20,807

Total Expenditures

21,057

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures

49,670

Fund Balance, Beginning

177,620

Fund Balance, Ending

$

227,290

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures

$

49,670

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities
are different because:
Reconciling items to the Statement of Activities

0

Changes in Net Position of Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

$

16

49,670

Yuima Municipal Water District
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Fund
June 30, 2018
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Accounts Receivable
Taxes Receivable
Interest Receivable
Inventories
Prepaids

$

Total Current Assets

2,880,621
1,535,968
1,449,460
5,291
20,981
455,430
33,832
6,381,583

Noncurrent Assets:
Net OPEB Asset
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated
Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation

115,115
1,768,129
11,988,648

Total Noncurrent Assets

13,871,892

Total Assets

20,253,475

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension Related Items
OPEB Related Items

1,247,943
146,183

Total Deferred Outlows of Resources

1,394,126

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Deposits and Other Accrued Liabilities
Interest Payable
Due to Other Funds
Compensated Absences - Current Portion
Notes Payable - Current Portion

1,251,612
80,554
18,823
206,626
35,546
172,424

Total Current Liabilities

1,765,585

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated Absences
Net Pension Liability
Notes Payable

106,637
2,531,736
1,207,376

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

3,845,749

Total Liabilities

5,611,334

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension Related Items
OPEB Related Items

169,062
1,477

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

170,539

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted
Total Net Position
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

12,376,977
3,488,751
$
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15,865,728

Yuima Municipal Water District
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Proprietary Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2018
OPERATING REVENUES
Water Sales and Pumping Charges
Other Services

$

Total Operating Revenues

16,771,256

OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased Water
Pumping
Water Treatment
Transmission and Distribution
Customer Accounts
General Plant
General and Administrative
Depreciation

11,651,917
1,961,875
132,332
219,407
131,919
101,014
1,826,413
549,190

Total Operating Expenses

16,574,067

Operating Income (Loss)

197,189

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Property Taxes and Assessments
Availability Charges
Lease Income
Investment Earnings
Other Non-operating Revenues
Interest Expense
Net Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets
Other Non-operating Expenses

434,955
663,772
80,609
51,431
124,642
(42,263)
(17,251)
(9,916)

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

1,285,979

Income (Loss) before Capital Contributions

1,483,168

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

177,837

Change in Net Position

1,661,005

Net Position - Beginning, As Previously Reported

14,088,644

Prior Period Adjustment

116,079

Net Position - Beginning, As Restated

14,204,723

Net Position - Ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

15,918,051
853,205

$

18

15,865,728

Yuima Municipal Water District
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2018
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received from Customers
Cash from Other Operating Activities
Cash Payments to Employees
Cash Payments to Suppliers

$

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

787,274

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Property Taxes and Assessments
Availability Charges
Lease Income
Advances to Other Funds

434,705
663,772
80,609
39,893

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Non-Capital Financing Activities

1,218,979

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital Capacity Fees
Acquisition of Capital Assets
Principal Payments on Capital Debt
Interest Payments on Capital Debt

177,837
(582,702)
(168,145)
(44,213)

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Capital and Related Financing

(617,223)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Investments
Proceeds from the Sale of Investments
Investment Earnings

(1,248,217)
399,409
48,873

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Investing Activities

(799,935)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

589,095

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year

2,291,526

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities:
Net Operating Income (Loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities:
Depreciation
Miscellaneous Revenues
Miscellaneous Expenses
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable
(Increase) Decrease in Inventories and Prepaids
(Increase) Decrease in Net OPEB Asset (Liability)
(Increase) Decrease in Pension Related Deferred Outflows of Resources
(Increase) Decrease in OPEB Related Deferred Outflows of Resources
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Compensated Absences
Increase (Decrease) in Deposits and Other Accrued Liabilities
Increase (Decrease) in Net Pension Liability
Increase (Decrease) in Pension Related Deferred Inflows of Resources
Increase (Decrease) in OPEB Related Deferred Inflows of Resources
Total Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

16,333,473
124,642
(1,355,298)
(14,315,543)

$

2,880,621

$

197,189

549,190
124,642
(9,916)
(428,867)
2,162
(71,693)
231,268
(78,799)
143,689
27,283
48,807
174,785
(123,943)
1,477
$

19

787,274

Yuima Municipal Water District
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2018
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Yuima Municipal Water District
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2018
1) REPORTING ENTITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A) Reporting Entity
The Yuima Municipal Water District (the "District") was formed in January 1963 pursuant to Section 8 of the
California Municipal Water District Act of 1911 to improve the delivery of agricultural and domestic water services,
and to facilitate the acquisition of a supplemental water supply from the Metropolitan Water District of California
within its boundaries. The District is governed by an elected, five-member Board of Directors (the “Board”). The
1963 General Obligation Bonds financed the construction of the necessary pipelines, pumping and storage facilities to
bring Colorado River water from the aqueducts owned by the Metropolitan Water District and the San Diego County
Water Authority to serve the properties within its boundaries, which cover about 13,460 acres in northeastern San
Diego County, California; the District maintains, develops and manages such water distribution system. The District
offices are located in Pauma Valley, California.
The area now known as “Improvement District A” (IDA) was originally known as Rossmoyne Villages
(“Rossmoyne”). The Palomar Mutual Water Company (“Palomar Mutual”) became Rossmoyne’s successor in
interest through an agreement dated February 11, 1948. In turn, Palomar Mutual transferred all of its water rights,
lands and water system, together with its functions and obligations, to the District in April, 1968.
Among the transferred obligations was a stipulated judgment (Strub et al. v Palomar or “Strub et al.”), filed
November 10, 1953 and later modified, that provides for the net delivery to IDA of no more than 1,350 acre-feet of
water per calendar year from the San Luis Rey River upstream of Cole Grade Road.
The District, as successor in interest to Palomar Mutual, continues to operate IDA as an independent water system
(California State System No. 3700938). While the District is responsible for administering IDA’s compliance with
Strub et al., that stipulated judgment does not affect or bind the 70% of the District which is outside of IDA and
which operates under a separate system permit (California State System No. 3701408).
The District added another 351 acres, Annexation #1, in November 1967, and another 63 acres, Annexation #2, in
November 1969, by revising its boundaries pursuant to the Reorganization Act of 1965 as amended by LAFCO. The
District added another six acres, Fitzsimmons Annexation, on March 26, 1991, and de-annexed 27 acres, Adams Deannexation, on March 29, 1991. Hence the District boundaries total 13,460 acres.
The Board of Directors and officers of the District at June 30, 2018 are as follows:
Name
W.D. “Bill” Knutson
Ron W. Watkins
Terry Yasutake
Roland Simpson
Lynne Villalobos

Title

Term Expiration

President
Vice President
Secretary/Treasurer
Director
Director

December 2018
December 2020
December 2020
December 2020
December 2018
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Yuima Municipal Water District
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2018
1) REPORTING ENTITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
B) Implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Pronouncements
Governmental Accounting Standard Board Statement No. 75
In June of 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions. This Statement was issued to improve accounting and financial reporting for postemployment
benefits other than pensions (other postemployment benefits or OPEB). It also improves information provided by
governmental employers about financial support for OPEB that is provided by other entities. This Statement
replaces the requirements of Statements No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, as amended, and No. 57, OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers
and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans, for OPEB. Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit
Plans Other Than Pension Plans, establishes new accounting and financial reporting requirements for OPEB plans.
Statement No. 75 is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017. The District has implemented GASB
No. 75 and is reflected on the District’s financial statements.
Governmental Accounting Standard Board Statement No. 81
In March of 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 81, Irrevocable Split Interest Agreements. This statement was
issued to improve accounting and financial reporting for irrevocable split-interest agreements by providing
recognition and measurement guidance for situations in which a government is a beneficiary of the agreement.
Split-interest agreements are a type of giving agreement used by donors to provide resources to two or more
beneficiaries, including governments. Split-interest agreements can be created through trusts—or other legally
enforceable agreements with characteristics that are equivalent to split-interest agreements—in which a donor
transfers resources to an intermediary to hold and administer for the benefit of a government and at least one other
beneficiary. This Statement requires that a government that receives resources pursuant to an irrevocable splitinterest agreement recognize assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources at the inception of the agreement.
Furthermore, this Statement requires that a government recognize assets representing its beneficial interests in
irrevocable split-interest agreements that are administered by a third party, if the government controls the present
service capacity of the beneficial interests. This Statement requires that a government recognize revenue when the
resources become applicable to the reporting period. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2016. Currently, this statement has no effect on the District’s financial
statements.
Governmental Accounting Standard Board Statement No. 82
In March of 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 82, Pension Issues – An Amendment of GASB Statements No. 67,
No. 68, and No. 73. This statement was issued to address certain issues that have been raised with respect to
Statements No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions, and No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not within the
Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68. Specifically,
this Statement addresses issues regarding (1) the presentation of payroll-related measures in required supplementary
information, (2) the selection of assumptions and the treatment of deviations from the guidance in an Actuarial
Standard of Practice for financial reporting purposes, and (3) the classification of payments made by employers to
satisfy employee (plan member) contribution requirements. Prior to the issuance of this Statement, Statements 67
and 68 required presentation of covered-employee payroll, which is the payroll of employees that are provided with
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Yuima Municipal Water District
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2018
1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
B) Implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Pronouncements - Continued
Governmental Accounting Standard Board Statement No. 82 - Continued
pensions through the pension plan, and ratios that use that measure, in schedules of required supplementary
information. This Statement amends Statements 67 and 68 to instead require the presentation of covered payroll,
defined as the payroll on which contributions to a pension plan are based, and ratios that use that measure. This
Statement also clarifies the term deviation used in Actuarial Standards of Practice and payments made by the
employer to satisfy contribution requirements. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting
periods beginning after June 15, 2016, except for the requirements of this Statement for the selection of assumptions
in a circumstance in which an employer’s pension liability is measured as of a date other than the employer’s most
recent fiscal year-end. In that circumstance, the requirements for the selection of assumptions are effective for that
employer in the first reporting period in which the measurement date of the pension liability is on or after June 15,
2017. The District has implemented GASB No. 82 and is reflected on the District’s financial statements.
Governmental Accounting Standard Board Statement No. 83
In November of 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations. This Statement was
issued to address the criteria for the recognition and measurement of the liability and corresponding deferred
outflows of resources associated with certain asset retirement obligations (AROs). An ARO is a legally enforceable
liability associated with the retirement of a tangible capital asset. Statement No. 83 is effective for reporting periods
beginning after June 15, 2018. The District has elected not to early implement GASB No. 83 and has not
determined its effect on the District’s financial statements.
Governmental Accounting Standard Board Statement No. 84
In January of 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. This Statement was issued to improve
guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes. This
Statement establishes the criteria for identifying fiduciary activities which should be reported in a fiduciary fund in
the basic financial statements. The fiduciary funds that should be reported, if applicable: a) pensions trust funds, b)
investment trust funds, c) private purpose trust funds, d) custodial funds. Statement No. 84 is effective for reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2018. The District has elected not to early implement GASB No. 84 and has
not determined its effect on the District’s financial statements.
Governmental Accounting Standard Board Statement No. 85
In March of 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017. This Statement addresses practice issues that
have risen from the implementation of certain GASB Statements; primarily pension and OPEB related measurement,
recognition, timing, and reporting issues. Other issues include blending of component units for governments whose
primary activity is business-type, goodwill reporting, classifying real estate held by insurance entities and measuring
particular investments at amortized cost. This Statement is effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15,
2017. The District has implemented GASB No. 85 and is reflected on the District’s financial statements.
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Yuima Municipal Water District
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2018
1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
B) Implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Pronouncements - Continued
Governmental Accounting Standard Board Statement No. 86
In May of 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 86, Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues. This Statement expands
upon GASB No. 7 Advance Refundings Resulting in Defeasance of Debt which defines debt defeased in substance
and the criteria for the trusts used to extinguish debt. This Statement establishes essentially the same requirements
for when a government places cash and other monetary assets acquired with only existing resources in an
irrevocable trust to extinguish the debt. This Statement is effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15,
2017. Currently, this statement has no effect on the District’s financial statements.
Governmental Accounting Standard Board Statement No. 87
In June of 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. The intent of this Statement is to improve accounting and
financial reporting for government leases by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases
that were previously classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources
based on the payment provisions of the contract. This Statement establishes a single model for lease accounting
based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. This Statement
is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. The District has elected not to early
implement GASB No. 87 and has not determined its effect on the District’s financial statements.
Governmental Accounting Standard Board Statement No. 88
In March of 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct
Borrowings and Direct Placements. This Statement was issued to improve the information that is disclosed in the
notes to government financial statements related to debt, including direct borrowings and direct placements. This
Statement requires that additional essential information related to debt be disclosed in notes to financial statements,
including unused lines of credit; assets pledged as collateral for the debt; and terms specified in debt agreements
related to significant events of default with finance-related consequences, significant termination events with
finance-related consequences, and significant subjective acceleration clauses. Statement No. 88 is effective for
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2018. The District has elected not to early implement GASB No. 88 and has
not determined its effect on the District’s financial statements.
Governmental Accounting Standard Board Statement No. 89
In June of 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a
Construction Period. This Statement was issued to (1) to enhance the relevance and comparability of information
about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (2) to simplify accounting for interest cost
incurred before the end of a construction period. This Statement requires that interest cost incurred before the end
of a construction period be recognized as an expense in the period in which the cost is incurred for financial
statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. As a result, interest cost incurred before the
end of a construction period will not be included in the historical cost of a capital asset reported in a business-type
activity or enterprise fund. Statement No. 89 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. The
District has elected not to early implement GASB No. 89 and has not determined its effect on the District’s financial
statements.
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1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
B) Implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Pronouncements - Continued
Governmental Accounting Standard Board Statement No. 90
In August of 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests, an amendment of GASB Statements
No. 14 and No. 61. This Statement was issued to improve the consistency and comparability of reporting a
government's majority equity interest in a legally separate organization and to improve the relevance of financial
statement information for certain component units. This Statement defines a majority equity interest and specifies
that a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization should be reported as an investment if a
government's holding of the equity interest meets the definition of an investment. A majority equity interest that
meets the definition of an investment should be measured using the equity method, unless it is held by a specialpurpose government engaged only in fiduciary activities, a fiduciary fund, or an endowment (including permanent
and term endowments) or permanent fund. Those governments and funds should measure the majority equity
interest at fair value. Statement No. 90 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018. The District
has elected not to early implement GASB No. 90 and has not determined its effect on the District’s financial
statements.
C) Basis of Presentation
The basic financial statements of the Yuima Municipal Water District have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”). The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (“GASB”) is the accepted standard setting body for governmental accounting and financial reporting
purposes.
These statements require that the financial statements described below be presented:
Government-wide Statements: The Government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and
the Statement of Activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component units. For the most part, the effect of inter-fund activity has been removed from these statements.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.
The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are expenses that are clearly identifiable with a specific program, project,
function or segment. Program revenues of the District include: 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase,
use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.
Taxes and other items that are properly not included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.
Fund Financial Statements: Separate financial statements are provided for the governmental fund and proprietary fund.
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1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
D) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of funds and account groups, each of which is considered a
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing
accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows of resources, fund equity, revenues and
expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. District resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds
based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.
The various funds of the primary government are grouped, in the financial statements in this report, into two generic
fund types and two broad fund categories as follows:
Proprietary Funds are accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement focus and use the accrual
basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the
time liabilities are incurred. The District has one type of Proprietary Fund, which is an Enterprise Fund.
Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations where the governing body has decided that periodic
determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance,
public policy, management control, accountability or other purposes. The District maintains one Enterprise
Fund, the Water Department, to account for the operations of the District's utility services.
Proprietary Funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.
Governmental Funds are used to account for the District's Fire activities. Governmental fund financial
statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered
to be available when they are collected within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the District considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days
of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under
accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences
and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.
Taxes, intergovernmental revenues, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual, and are therefore recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only
the portion of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to
accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available
only when cash is received by the District.
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1) REPORTING ENTITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
D) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation - Continued
The District has one Special Revenue Governmental Fund, which is the Fire Protection Fund. The Fire Protection
Fund is used to account for all financial resources and expenditures used to provide fire protection services within
the boundaries of the District.
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use restricted
resources first, and then use unrestricted resources as they are needed.
E) Reconciliation Between the Governmental Fund Financial Statements and Government-wide Statements
The District has one governmental fund that provides fire protection services through the California Department of
Forestry. These services are paid for through special assessments. The District currently has no capital assets, longterm debt or other reconciling items necessary to reconcile between the Governmental fund financial statements and
the Government-wide statements.
F) Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consists of short-term highly liquid
investments with maturities of 90 days or less.
G) Investments
As a governmental entity other than an external investment pool in accordance with GASB 31, the District's
investments are stated at fair value.
In applying GASB 31, the District utilized the following methods and assumptions:
1) Fair value is based on quoted market prices as of the valuation date;
2) The portfolio did not hold investments in any of the following:
a)
b)
c)
d)

Items required to be reported at amortized cost,
Items in external pools that are not SEC-registered (excluding government sponsored pools),
Items subject to involuntary participation in an external pool,
Items associated with a fund other than the fund to which the income is assigned;

3) Any unrealized gain/loss resulting from the valuation will be recognized within the related fund to the extent its
cash and investments' balance exceeds the cumulative value of those investments subject to GASB 31;
4) The gain/loss resulting from valuation will be reported within the revenue account "investment earnings" on the
Statement of Activities and the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance for
Governmental Funds. For Proprietary Fund Types the gain/loss from valuation will be reported within the
“investment earnings” account on the Statement of Activities and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position for Proprietary Funds.
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1) REPORTING ENTITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
H) Water Sales and Accounts Receivable
Water sales revenue is recorded and billed monthly when the service is rendered. During the year ended June 30, 2018,
the District reported water sales to one customer which totaled approximately 26.03% as a percentage of consumption.
Management has not incurred any additional expense to serve this customer, and the District has more than one source
of supply to meet its needs.
I)

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts
The District does not provide an allowance for uncollectible accounts. Based upon prior experience and
management's assessment of the collectibility of existing specific accounts all past due accounts have been paid.
When accounts become past due, they are transferred to the tax roll and eventually collected.

J) Inventories and Prepaids
Inventory consists of parts, materials and supplies needed to keep the plant and equipment owned by the District in
efficient operating condition to supply water to their customers without interruption of such service. It is valued at
cost, and when it is used, it is charged out on the first in, first out basis. Water inventory is stated at its purchase cost
using first in, first out method.
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaids in the
financial statements. The cost of prepaid items is recorded as expenses when consumed rather than when purchased.
K) Capital Assets
Capital assets of the District are recorded at cost, or if donated, valued at their estimated acquisition value rather
than fair market value on the date contributed. Contributed assets are recorded at the developer's cost or at the value
determined by the developer at the date of contribution. The District does not capitalize interest costs incurred on
the construction of capital assets. Capital assets purchased in excess of $2,000 are capitalized if they have an
expected useful life greater than one year.
Assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

General Plant
Source of Supply
Pumping Plant
Water Treatment Plant
Transmission and Distribution
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1) REPORTING ENTITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
L) Compensated Absences
It is the District’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation, sick, comp and other leave
benefits. Sick leave, upon termination, separation or retirement will be paid out at a rate of 50% of the accumulated
balance. All other leave balances are paid 100% upon termination, separation or retirement. The accrued liabilities
for compensated absences are reflected in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements.
Currently, there are no compensated absences associated with the governmental activities.
M) Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until then. The District has deferred outflows related to pensions and other postemployment
benefits. This includes pension contributions subsequent to the measurement date of the net pension liability, other
postemployment benefits contributions subsequent to the measurement date of the net OPEB liability (asset), and
other amounts (see Notes 6 and 7), which are amortized by an actuarial determined period.
In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that
time. The District has deferred inflows related to pensions and other postemployment benefits. These amounts (see
Notes 6 and 7) are amortized by an actuarial determined period.
N) Pensions
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to pensions, and
pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the District’s California Public Employees’
Retirement System (CalPERS) plan (Plan) and additional to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value.
O) Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)
For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability (asset), deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the District’s plan
(OPEB Plan) and additions to/deductions from the OPEB Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the
same basis. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when currently due and payable in accordance with
the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
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1) REPORTING ENTITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
O) Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) - Continued
Generally accepted accounting principles require that the reported results must pertain to lability and asset
information within certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used.
Valuation Date
Measurement Date
Measurement Period

June 30, 2017
June 30, 2017
July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017

P) Net Position
GASB No. 63 requires that the difference between assets, liabilities and deferred outflows/inflows of resources be
reported as net position. Net position is classified as either net investment in capital assets, restricted, or
unrestricted.
Net position classified as net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
and reduced by the outstanding principal of related debt. Restricted net position is the net position that has external
constraints placed on them by creditors, grantors, contributors, laws, or regulations of other governments, or through
constitutional provisions, or enabling legislation. Unrestricted net position consists of net position that does not
meet the definition of net investment in capital assets or restricted net position.
Q) Fund Equity
Fund balance in governmental funds are reported in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the
extent to which the District is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in those funds
can be spent. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District's policy to use
restricted resources first and then use unrestricted resources as they are needed. Similarly, when an expenditure is
incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted classifications of fund balance could be used, the
District considers committed amounts to be reduced first, followed by assigned amounts and then unassigned amounts.
Nonspendable Fund Balance - Includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable form,
or, for legal or contractual reasons, must be kept intact.
Restricted Fund Balance - Constraints placed on the use of these resources are either externally imposed by creditors
(such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors or other governments; or are imposed by law (through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation).
Committed Fund Balance - Amounts that can only be used for specific purposes because of a formal action
(ordinance) by the government's highest level of decision-making authority. The Board of Directors is the highest
level of decision-making authority for the District that can, by adoption of an ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal
year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinance remains in place until a similar
action is taken to remove or revise the limitation.

30

Yuima Municipal Water District
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2018
1) REPORTING ENTITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
Q) Fund Equity - Continued
Assigned Fund Balance - Amounts that are constrained by the District's intent to be used for specific purposes, but
that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. Intent can be stipulated by the governing
body, another body, or by an official to whom the authority has been given. The Board of Directors has by
resolution the authority to assign fund balance. However, unlike commitments, assignments generally only exist
temporarily. In other words, an additional action does not normally have to be taken for the removal of an
assignment.
Unassigned Fund Balance - These are either residual positive net resources of the General Fund in excess of what
can properly be classified in one of the other categories, or negative balances in all other funds.
R) Property Tax
Property taxes are assessed and collected each fiscal year according to the following property tax calendar:
Lien Date
Levy Year
Due Dates
Delinquent Dates

January
July 1 to June 30
November 1
February 1
December 10
April 10

1st Installment
2nd Installment
1st Installment
2nd Installment

Under California law, property taxes and other charges (such as assessments) are assessed and collected by counties
up to 1% of assessed value, plus other increases approved by voters. Property tax revenues are pooled and then
allocated to entities based on complex formulas prescribed by state statutes.
S) Capitalized Expenses
Certain administrative and general expenses, relating to assets under construction, are charged to construction in
progress until the assets are ready for their intended use. Upon completion of major utility plant additions the
capitalized cost is recorded as part of the asset to which it is related and is depreciated over the estimated useful life of
the related asset.
T) Use of Estimates
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America and necessarily include amounts based on estimates and assumptions by Management.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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2) CASH AND INVESTMENTS
Cash and Investments
Cash and Investments are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows:
Statement of Net Position:
Cash and Investments

$

4,429,768

Cash on Hand
Deposits with Financial Institutions
Investments

$

500
1,295,539
3,133,729

Total Cash and Investments

$

4,429,768

Cash and investments consist of the following:

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District’s Investment Policy
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized by the District’s investment policy. The table also
identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the District’s investment policy, where more restrictive)
that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.

Authorized
Investment Type

Maximum
Maturity

Maximum
Percentage
Of Portfolio(1)

Maximum
Investment
In One Issuer

Local Agency Bonds
U.S. Treasury Obligations
U.S. Agency Securities
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
JPA Pools (Other Investment Pools)

5 years
5 years
5 years
1 year
N/A
N/A

None
None
None
30%
None
None

None
None
None
None
None
None

(1)

Excluding amounts held by bond trustee that are not subject to California Government Code Restrictions.

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.
Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest
rates. One of the ways that the District manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter
term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or
coming close to maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations.
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2) CASH AND INVESTMENTS - Continued
Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk - Continued
As of June 30, 2018, the District had the following investments:

State Investment Pool (LAIF)
U.S. Treasury Notes
Total

$

2,639,669
494,060

$

3,133,729

Maturity Date

Weighted
Average Maturity
(Years)

N/A
Various

0.67
3.01

* The District has various non-negotiable Certificates of Deposit with various maturity dates, however, these amounts are
considered to be deposits with institutions rather than investments.
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment.
This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. Presented below is
the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California Government Code or the District’s investment policy, or
debt agreements, and the actual rating as of year end for each investment type.
Minimum
Legal
Rating

Investment Type
State Investment Pool (LAIF)
U.S. Treasury Notes
Total

$ 2,639,669
494,060

N/A
N/A

Exempt
From
Disclosure
$

Rating as of Year End
AAA
$

Not
Rated

Aa
$

$

2,639,669

$

2,639,669

494,060

$ 3,133,729

$

0 $

494,060

$

0

Concentration of Credit Risk
The investment policy of the District contains no limitation on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer beyond
that stipulated by the California Government Code. As of year end, the District had no investments in any one issuer
(other than U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds, and external investment pools) that represent 5% or more of total
District investments.
Custodial Credit Risk
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a
government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or
collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The California Government Code and the District’s
investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for
deposits or investments, other than the following provisions for deposits and investments: The California Government
Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local government units by pledging securities
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Custodial Credit Risk - Continued
in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental
unit). The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount
deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure District deposits by pledging
first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits. Negotiable certificates of deposits
must be fully insured and have a rating of satisfactory or better.
As of June 30, 2018, none of the District’s deposits with financial institutions that were in excess of federal depository
insurance limits were held in uncollaterized acccounts.
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
The yield of LAIF for the quarter ended June 30, 2018 was 1.90%. The estimated amortized cost and fair value of the
LAIF Pool at June 30, 2018 was $88,964,875,827 and $88,798,232,977, respectively. The District's share of the Pool at
June 30, 2018 was approximately 0.002973 percent.
The LAIF is a special fund of the California State Treasury through which local governments may pool investments. It is
regulated by California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California.
Each district may invest up to $65,000,000 in the Fund. Investments in LAIF are highly liquid, as deposits can be
converted to cash within twenty-four hours without loss of interest. Investments in LAIF are secured by the full faith
and credit of the State of California. The fair value of the District’s investment in this Pool is reported in the
accompanying financial statements based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the
entire LAIF portfolio. The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF,
which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. Included in LAIF's investment portfolio are certain derivative securities
or similar products in the form of structured notes totaling $825,000,000 and asset-backed securities totaling
$1,549,080,000. LAIF's (and the District's) exposure to risk (credit, market or legal) is not currently available.

3) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurements and Application,
provides the framework for measuring fair value. The framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value with Level 1 given the highest priority and Level 3 the lowest
priority. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:
Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the organization
has the ability to access at the measurement date.
Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 2 inputs include the following:
a.

Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets.

b.

Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active.
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c.

Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability (for example, interest rates and
yield curves observable at commonly quoted intervals, volatilities, prepayment speeds, loss severities,
credit risks, and default rates).

d.

Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other
means (market-corroborated inputs).

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
Fair value of assets measured on a recurring basis are as follows:

Fair Value
Investments:
State Investment Pool (LAIF)
U.S. Treasury Notes

$

Total Investments

$

Uncategorized

2,639,669
494,060

$

3,133,729

$

2,639,669

Significant Other
Observable Inputs
(Level 2)
$
494,060

2,639,669

$

494,060

The State Investment Pool (LAIF) is exempt under GASB No. 72 fair value measurements. The District uses the market
approach for Level 2 investments by using information generated by market transactions involving identical or similar
assets, liabilities, or groups of assets and liabilities. Less actively traded securities use valuation models, such as a
matrix pricing technique, by comparing the securities’ relationship to other benchmark quoted securities or the most
recent price obtained from the market.

4) CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the year was as follows:
Beginning
Balance
Business-type Activities:
Capital Assets, Not Depreciated:
Land and Improvements
Construction in Progress
Total Capital Assets
Not Depreciated
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:
General Plant
Source of Supply
Pumping Plant
Water Treatment Plant
Transmission and Distribution Plant
Total Capital Assets, Being
Depreciated

$

1,301,457
267,833

Increases

374,315

175,476

1,301,457
466,672

1,569,290

374,315

175,476

1,768,129

1,837,999
9,025,684
3,535,095
199,226
8,021,053

34,509
17,348
72,308

10,494
19,515

259,698

22,619,057

383,863
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$

Ending
Balance

Decreases

$

$

30,009

1,872,508
9,032,538
3,587,888
199,226
8,280,751
22,972,911

Yuima Municipal Water District
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2018
4) CAPITAL ASSETS - Continued
Beginning
Balance
Business-type Activities - Continued
Less Accumulated Depreciation:
General Plant
Source of Supply
Pumping Plant
Water Treatment Plant
Transmission and Distribution Plant

$

Total Accumulated Depreciation
Total Capital Assets, Being
Depreciated, Net
Business-type Activities Capital Assets,
Net of Depreciation

$

Increases

(1,461,002)
(2,147,509)
(1,596,419)
(73,804)
(5,169,097)

$

(73,687)
(175,537)
(120,573)
(4,823)
(174,570)

Ending
Balance

Decreases

$

$
(10,494)
(2,264)

(1,534,689)
(2,312,552)
(1,714,728)
(78,627)
(5,343,667)

(10,447,831)

(549,190)

(12,758)

(10,984,263)

12,171,226

(165,327)

17,251

11,988,648

13,740,516

$

208,988

$

192,727

$

13,756,777

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:
Business-type Activities:
Water Enterprise

$

549,190

5) LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
The following is a summary of changes in Business-type Activities Long-term liabilities for the year:
Beginning
Balance

Description
Compensated Absences (Note 1) $
Net OPEB Liability (Note 7)
Net Pension Liability (Note 6)
Note Payable:
2013 Station 1 Note
2013 Station 4 Note
2013 Installment Note
Total

$

114,900
5,273
2,356,951

Additions
$

56,008

$

560,945

62,203
43,970
1,441,772
4,025,069

Ending
Balance

Deletions
28,725
5,273
386,160

$

12,040
7,875
148,230
$

616,953
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$

588,303

142,183
0
2,531,736

Due Within
One Year
$

50,163
36,095
1,293,542
$

4,053,719

35,546

12,039
7,875
152,510
$

207,970
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Notes Payable - 2013 Station 1 Note - In August 2012, the District entered into an On-Bill Financing agreement with San
Diego Gas & Electric Company for $120,393 with no interest. The imputed interest on the loan was not significant to the
note payable. The agreement is to provide financing for Station 1 IDA improvements that will provide energy efficiency
savings.
The payments are due in monthly installments on the District’s utility bills from San Diego Gas & Electric Company of
$1,003, commencing September 4, 2012 through September 4, 2022.
For the Year
Ended June 30,

Payment

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

$

12,039
12,039
12,039
12,039
2,007

Total

$

50,163

Notes Payable - 2013 Station 4 Note - In January 2013, the District entered into an On-Bill Financing agreement with San
Diego Gas & Electric Company for $78,753 with no interest. The imputed interest on the loan was not significant to the
note payable. The agreement is to provide financing for Station 4 IDA improvements that will provide energy efficiency
savings. The payments are due in monthly installments on the District’s utility bills from San Diego Gas & Electric
Company of $656, commencing February 1, 2013 through February 1, 2023.
For the Year
Ended June 30,

Payment

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

$

7,875
7,875
7,875
7,875
4,595

Total

$

36,095

Notes Payable - 2013 Installment Note - In July 2013, the District entered into a Loan and Installment Sale agreement
with City National Bank for $2,420,000 with interest rate of 2.35% - 3.55%. The agreement is to provide financing for the
refinancing of two installment sale agreements and for the acquisition and construction of a 1.2 million gallon water storage
tank and pump station. The payments are due in semiannual installments commencing July 15, 2014 through July 15, 2033.
The District only borrowed $2,372,463 of the $2,420,000 Installment Note since it made an additional debt service payment
on the 2007 Installment Note before it was refinanced.
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5) LONG-TERM LIABILITIES - Continued

For the Year
Ended June 30,

2007 Refunding Installment Agreement
Principal
Interest
Total

Principal

Construction
Interest

Total

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024-2028
2029-2033
2034

$

115,536
118,618
121,783
125,031
63,761

$

13,675
10,593
7,429
4,180
845

$

129,211
129,211
129,212
129,211
64,606

$

36,974 $
38,298
39,670
41,091
42,562
236,800
282,353
31,065

26,257
24,933
23,562
22,141
20,669
79,359
33,806
551

$

63,231
63,231
63,232
63,232
63,231
316,159
316,159
31,616

Total

$

544,729

$

36,722

$

581,451

$

748,813 $

231,278

$

980,091

For the Year
Ended June 30,
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024-2028
2029-2033
2034
Total

Total
Interest

Principal
$

152,510
156,916
161,453
166,122
106,323
236,800
282,353
31,065

$

39,932
35,526
30,991
26,321
21,514
79,359
33,806
551

$ 1,293,542

$

268,000

Total
$

192,442
192,442
192,444
192,443
127,837
316,159
316,159
31,616

$ 1,561,542

Pledged Revenues
The District has pledged a portion of future water activities revenues to repay its 2013 Installment Note payable to City
National Bank under the agreement with Municipal Finance Corporation. The note payable is secured solely by
operating revenues from the proprietary fund. Total principal and interest remaining on the note payable is $1,561,542
payable through fiscal year 2034. For the current year, principal and interest paid by the operating revenues were
$148,230 and $44,213, respectively.
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6) PENSION PLANS
A) General Information about the Pension Plans
Plan Descriptions
All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the Public Agency Cost-Sharing
Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Plan) administered by the California Public Employees’
Retirement System (CalPERS). The Plan consists of individual rate plans (benefit tiers) within a safety risk pool
(police and fire) and a miscellaneous risk pool (all other). Plan assets may be used to pay benefits for any employer
rate plan of the safety and miscellaneous pools. Accordingly, rate plans within the safety or miscellaneous pools are
not separate plans under GASB Statement No. 68. Individual employers may sponsor more than one rate plan in the
miscellaneous or safety risk pools. Currently, the District only sponsors rate plans in the miscellaneous risk pools.
Benefit provisions under the Plan are established by State statute and District resolution. CalPERS issues publicly
available reports that include a full description of the pension plan regarding provisions, assumptions and
membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website.
Benefits Provided
CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits to
plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service,
equal to one year of fulltime employment. Members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50
with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service.
The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional
Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public
Employees’ Retirement Law.
The rate plan provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2018, are summarized as follows:

Hire Date
Benefit Formulas
Benefit Vesting Schedule
Benefit Payments
Retirement Age
Monthly Benefits, as a % of Eligible Compensation
Required Employee Contribution Rates
Required Employer Contribution Rates
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Miscellaneous
Prior to
On or After
January 1, 2013
January 1, 2013
2% at 55
2% at 62
3% at 60
5 Years Service
5 Years Service
Monthly for Life
Monthly for Life
50 - 60+
50 - 67+
2% - 3%
2.3%
8%
6.25% - 8%
12.698%
6.25%

Yuima Municipal Water District
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2018
6) PENSION PLANS - Continued
A) General Information about the Pension Plans - Continued
Contributions
Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer contribution rates
for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1
following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for both Plans are determined annually on an
actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to
finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any
unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined
rate and the contribution rate of employees.
The District’s contributions to the Plan for the year ended June 30, 2018 were $386,811.
B) Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
The District reported net pension liability for its proportionate shares of the net pension liability of the Plan of
$2,531,736.
The District’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension liability.
The net pension liability of each of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension liability for the
Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016 rolled
forward to June 30, 2017 using standard update procedures. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability
was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plans relative to the
projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined.
The District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability as of June 30, 2016 and 2017 was as follows:
CalPERS
Pension Plan
Proportion - June 30, 2016
Proportion - June 30, 2017
Change - Increase (Decrease)
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0.06785%
0.06422%
(0.00363%)
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6) PENSION PLANS - Continued
B) Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions Continued
For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized pension expense of $4,697. At June 30, 2018, the
District’s reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:
Deferred Outflows
of Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date
Differences between actual and expected experience
Changes in assumptions
Change in employer’s proportion and differences between
the employer’s contributions and the employer’s
Proportionate share of contributions
Net differences between projected and actual earnings on
plan investments

$

386,811
3,004
372,731

Deferred Inflows
of Resources
$
(28,422)
(43,038)

(97,602)

401,101
84,296

Total

$

1,247,943

$

(169,062)

The $386,811 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement
date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2019. Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflow of resources related to pensions will be recognized as
pension expense as follows:
Deferred
Outflows/Inflows
of Resources

Year Ended
June 30
2018
2019
2020
2021

$
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273,262
279,730
189,123
(50,045)
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6) PENSION PLANS - Continued
B) Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions Continued
Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuation were determined using the following actuarial
assumptions:
CalPERS
Pension Plan
Valuation Date
Measurement Date
Actuarial Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate
Inflation
Projected Salary Increase
Investment Rate of Return
Mortality Rate Table (1)
Post Retirement Benefit Increase

(1)

June 30, 2016
June 30, 2017
Entry-Age Normal
7.15%
2.75%
Varies by Entry Age and Service
7.15%
Derived using CalPERS’ Membership Data for all Funds
Contract COLA up to 2.75% until Purchasing Power Protection
Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies, 2.75% thereafter.

The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS’ specific data. The table includes 20 years of
mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB. For more details on this table, please refer to the
2014 experience study report.

The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016 valuation were
based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period from 1997 to 2011, including updates to salary
increase, mortality and retirement rates. Further details of the Experience Study can be found on the CalPERS
website.
Change of Assumptions
In the 2017 measurement period, the discount rate reduced from 7.65 percent to 7.15 percent.
Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15%. To determine whether the municipal bond
rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for each plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that would most
likely result in a discount rate that would be different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. The tests revealed
the assets would not run out. Therefore, the current 7.15 percent discount rate is appropriate and the use of the
municipal bond rate calculation is not deemed necessary. The long term expected discount rate of 7.15 percent will
be applied to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF). The cash flows used in the testing were
developed assuming that both members and employers will make their required contributions on time and as
scheduled in all future years. The stress test results are presented in a detailed reported called “GASB Crossover
Testing Report” that can be obtained at CalPERS website under the GASB 68 section.
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6) PENSION PLANS - Continued
B) Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions Continued
Discount Rate - Continued
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-term
market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical returns of all the Public
Employees Retirement Funds’ asset classes (which includes the agent plan and two cost-sharing plans or PERF A,
B, and C funds), expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the
long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term
and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each PERF fund. The expected rate of return was set
by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows
as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set
equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above the rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent.
The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was calculated
using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation. The target
allocation shown was approved by the CalPERS Board effective on July 1, 2014.

Asset Class

New Strategic
Allocation

Global Equity
Global Fixed Income
Inflation Sensitive
Private Equity
Real Estate
Infrastructure and Forestland
Liquidity

47.0%
19.0%
6.0%
12.0%
11.0%
3.0%
2.0%

Total
(a)
(b)

100%

An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period.
An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period.
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Real Return
Years 1 - 10(a)
4.90%
0.80%
0.60%
6.60%
2.80%
3.90%
-0.40%

Real Return
Years 11+(b)
5.38%
2.27%
1.39%
6.63%
5.21%
5.36%
-0.90%
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6) PENSION PLANS - Continued
B) Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions Continued
Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan, calculated using the
discount rate for each Plan, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if
it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current
rate:
CalPERS
Pension Plan
1% Decrease
Net Pension Liability

$

6.15%
3,760,364

Current Discount Rate
Net Pension Liability

$

7.15%
2,531,736

1% Increase
Net Pension Liability

$

8.15%
1,514,165

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the Plan’s fiduciary net positions is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial
reports.
Payable to the Pension Plan
At June 30, 2018, the District reported payable of $6,614, which is included in other accrued liabilities, for the
outstanding amount of contributions to the pension plan required for the year ended June 30, 2018.
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7) POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB)
Plan Description
In May 2000, the District’s Board of Directors approved and adopted a postemployment healthcare plan ("the Retiree
Health Benefit Plan" or “RHB Plan”) for the benefit of its management employees to be effective July 1, 2000. The plan
is permitted under Government Code Section 53200 et. Seq. The Board of Directors establishes and has the authority to
amend the plan provisions. The Board of Directors amended the plan on April 25, 2011 to a defined contribution plan
effective July 1, 2011 for new management employees. Participants in the plan as of June 30, 2011 will continue to
receive benefits under the defined benefit plan’s provisions prior to this amendment. A separate financial report is not
prepared for the Retiree Health Benefit Plan.
In September 2010, the District established an irrevocable trust fund through the California Public Employees’ Retiree
Benefits Trust (CERBT), an agent multiple-employer postemployment healthcare trust administered by CalPERS, which
acts as a common investment and administrative agent for participating public employers within the State of California.
CalPERS issues a separate Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. Copies of the CalPERS’ annual financial report
may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office, 400 P Street, Sacramento, California 95814.
Funding Policy
Under the defined contribution plan, contributions to the plan are made solely by the District which are established and
may be amended by the Board of Directors. The District contributes 100% of the health insurance premiums for an
eligible retirement management employee and spouse, not to exceed:




$320 per month for retiree and spouse coverage;
$200 per month for retiree only coverage; and
$160 per month for retiree's spouse only coverage.

The District's contribution toward the health insurance premiums will cease when the retired management employee and
spouse reach age 65.
Employees Covered
As of June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation, the following current and former employees were covered by the benefit terms
under the RHB Plan:
Active employees
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Inactive employees entitled to, but not yet receiving benefits
Total

4
0
2
6

Contributions
The annual contribution is based on the actuarially determined contribution. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the
District’s cash contributions were $141,837 in payments to the trust and the estimated implied subsidy was $4,346
resulting in total payments of $146,183.
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7) POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) - Continued
Net OPEB Liability (Asset)
The District’s net OPEB liability (asset) was measured as of June 30, 2017 and the total OPEB liability used to calculate
the net OPEB liability (asset) was determined by an actuarial valuation dated June 30, 2017 based on the following
actuarial methods and assumptions:
Actuarial Assumptions
Valuation Date
Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method
Amortization Period
Asset Valuation Method
Discount Rate
Investment Rate of Return
General Inflation
Salary Increases
Medical Trend

Mortality, Retirement,
Disability Termination
Mortality Improvement
Participation at Retirement
Surviving Spouse Participation
(1)

June 30, 2017
Entry Age Normal, Level Percentage of Payroll
Level Percent of Pay
20-Year Fixed Period for 2017/18
Market Value of Assets
5.50%
5.50%
2.75%
Aggregate - 3%
Merit - CalPERS 1997-2015 Experience Study(1)
Non-Medicare - 7.5% for 2019, decreasing to an ultimate rate of 4.0% in
2076 and later years.
Medicare - 6.5% for 2019, decreasing to an ultimate rate of 4.0% in 2076
and later years.
CalPERS 1997-2015 Experience Study(1)
Mortality projected fully generational with Scale MP-2017
100% of future eligible retirees will elect coverage.
100% of spouses will continue coverage upon the death of the retiree.

The Experience Study Report may be accessed on the CalPERS website www.calpers.ca.gov under Forms and
Publications.

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building block method in which
best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of OPEB plan investment expense and
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of
return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the OPEB plan’s target asset
are summarized in the following table:
Long-term
Target Allocation
Expected Real
Asset Class
CERBT-Strategy 3(1)
Rate of Return
Global Equity
Fixed Income
TIPS
Commodities
REITs

24%
39%
26%
3%
8%

Total

100%
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4.82%
1.47%
1.29%
0.84%
3.76%
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7) POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) - Continued
Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability (asset) was 5.50 percent. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that District contributions will be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined
contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all projected OPEB payments for current active and inactive employees and beneficiaries. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the
total OPEB liability (asset).
Changes in the OPEB Liability (Asset)
The changes in the net OPEB liability (asset) for the Plan are as follows:
Increase (Decrease)
Total OPEB
Liability
(a)
Balance at June 30, 2017
(Measurement Date June 30, 2016)

$

Changes Recognized for the Measurement Period:
Service Cost
Interest
Actual vs. Expected Experience
Changes of Assumptions
Contributions - Employer
Net Investment Income
Benefit Payments
Administrative Expense

$

(54,290)
10,837

Balance at June 30, 2018
(Measurement Date June 30, 2017)

1,234,574

Net OPEB
Liability/(Asset)
(c) = (a) - (b)
$

1,049
64,078

Net Changes

(1)

1,191,152

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position
(b)

$

1,201,989

$

(43,422)(1)

67,384
70,090
(54,290)
(654)

1,049
64,078
0
0
(67,384)
(70,090)
0
654

82,530

(71,693)

1,317,104

$

(115,115)

The beginning balance of the net OPEB liability was adjusted due to the implementation of GASB 75. See Note 14.

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the net OPEB liability (asset) of the District if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one
percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate, for measurement period ended June 30,
2017:
Current
1% Decrease
Discount Rate
1% Increase
(4.50%)
(5.50%)
(6.50%)
Net OPEB Liability (Asset)

$

36,931
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$

(115,115)

$

(241,252)
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7) POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) - Continued
Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Health Care Cost Trend Rates
The following presents the net OPEB liability (asset) of the District if it were calculated using health care cost trend rates
that are one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate, for measurement period ended
June 30, 2017:
Current
Healthcare Cost
Trend Rates(2)

1% Decrease(1)
Net OPEB Liability (Asset)

$

(237,802)

$

(115,115)

1% Increase(3)
$

29,837

(1)

Non-Medicare - 6.5% decreasing to an ultimate rate of 3.0% in 2076 and later years. Medicare - 5.5%
decreasing to an ultimate rate of 3.0% in 2076 and later years.
(2)
Non-Medicare - 7.5% decreasing to an ultimate rate of 4.0% in 2076 and later years. Medicare - 6.5%
decreasing to an ultimate rate of 4.0% in 2076 and later years.
(3)
Non-Medicare - 8.5% decreasing to an ultimate rate of 5.0% in 2076 and later years. Medicare - 7.5%
decreasing to an ultimate rate of 5.0% in 2076 and later years.

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position
CERBT issues a publicly available financial report that may be obtained from the California Public Employees
Retirement System Executive Office, 400 P Street, Sacramento, California 95814.

Recognition of Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Gains and losses related to changes in total OPEB liability and fiduciary net position are recognized in OPEB expense
systematically over time.
Amounts are first recognized in OPEB expense for the year the gain or loss occurs. The remaining amounts are
categorized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB and are to be recognized in future
OPEB expense.
The recognition period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss:
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on OPEB plan investments
All other amounts

5 years
Expected average remaining service lifetime (EARSL)
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7) POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) - Continued
OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized OPEB expense (credit) of $(2,382). As of fiscal year
ended June 30, 2018, the District reported deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following
services:
Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
OPEB contributions subsequent to measurement date
Changes in assumptions
Differences between expected and actual experience
Net differences between projected and actual earnings
on OPEB plan investments

$

146,183

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources
$

(1,477)

Total

$

146,183

$

(1,477)

The $146,183 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the June 30, 2017
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability (asset) during the fiscal year ending June
30, 2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized as expense as
follows:
Deferred
Year Ended
Outflow/(Inflows)
June 30,
of Resources
2019
2020
2021
2022

$

(369)
(369)
(369)
(370)

8) DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN
The District offers their employees a deferred compensation plan in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457.
The plan is under two investment group contracts, Valic and CalPERS, which offer a variety of variable rates. The plan
permits employees to defer a portion of their salary until future retirement years. Eligibility to participate is after six
months of service. The plan requires a minimum of $25 per month to be allocated for each option preference. The
maximum amount that may be deferred under this plan for the calendar year 2018 was $18,500 per participant and is
$18,000 for the calendar year 2017; or up to 25% of gross compensation.
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9) FIRE MITIGATION FEE PROGRAM
On March 20, 1987 the Board of Directors of the District passed Resolution Number 404-87 effective July 1, 1987
establishing a Fire Mitigation Fee Program. Since that time, the District has annually re-established participation in the
program. The Board resolved to participate in the San Diego County’s Fire Mitigation Fee Program whereby the District
requests the County of San Diego to collect 100% of the ceiling amount of the fire mitigation fee on the District’s behalf
from applicants for building permits or other permits for development. This percent of ceiling fee is equal to or less than
capital facility expansion needs caused by new development. Mitigation fees paid under this program will be used to
expand the availability of capital facilities and equipment to serve new development. A separate budget accounting
category has been set up on the books of the District to be known as the San Diego County Fire Mitigation Fee Fund.

10) NET POSITION - DESIGNATED
In addition to the regulatory restrictions imposed by state law, the Board of Directors by resolution allocated and
designated unrestricted net position balances for business-type activities for the following purposes:
Beginning
of Year
Customer Rate Stabilization
Minimum Operating Reserve
Continuing Capital Projects
Total

Additions
Transfers In

Dispositions
Transfers Out

$

309,730
1,110,540
475,803

$

746,148
383,176
463,353

$

$

1,896,073

$

1,592,677

$

0

End
of Year
$

1,055,878
1,493,716
939,156

$

3,488,750

11) JOINT VENTURE
On June 18, 1976, the District entered into a joint powers agreement for fire protection services with Pauma Municipal
Water District and Mootamai Municipal Water District. The fire protection services are provided by the California
Department of Forestry and Fire Protection (CALFIRE). The District under the agreement is responsible for
administrating these services and determining each district’s proportionate share. This activity is reflected in the
financial statements in the fire protection governmental fund.

12) RISK MANAGEMENT
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.
The District is a member of Association of California Water Agencies Joint Powers Insurance Authority (JPIA). The
JPIA is a risk-pooling self-insurance authority, created under provisions of California Government Code Sections 6500
et. seq. The purpose of JPIA is to arrange and administer programs of insurance for the pooling of self-insured losses
and to purchase excess insurance coverage from commercial insurance carriers to reduce its exposure to large losses.
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12) RISK MANAGEMENT - Continued
The District pays annual premiums for its liability (auto, general, and public officials), property loss, workers’
compensation, and fidelity bond coverage. They are subject to retrospective adjustments based on claims experience.
The nature and amounts of these adjustments cannot be estimated and are charged or credited to expense as invoiced.
The District’s insurance expense for year ended June 30, 2018 was $31,992. There were no instances in the past three
years where a settlement exceeded the District’s coverage.

13) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Legal
The District is involved with various potential litigation matters. In the opinion of management and legal counsel, the
disposition of all litigation pending will not have a material effect on the financial condition of the District.
Economic Dependency
For fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, 68.9% of water sold by the District is purchased from the San Diego Water
Authority and 31.1% is produced or purchased from local groundwater sources. All electricity used by the District for
pumping and operations is purchased from San Diego Gas and Electric.

14) PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT
The prior period adjustment of $116,079 relates to the implementation of GASB Statement 75 for postemployment
benefits other than pensions. The beginning net OPEB liability of $5,273 was adjusted by $48,695 to restate the amount
as a net OPEB asset. For deferred outflows of resources, OPEB related items, there was an adjustment of $67,384 to
record the beginning balance of OPEB contributions made subsequent to the measurement date.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Yuima Municipal Water District
Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
CalPERS Pension Plan
Last Ten Years(1)
As of June 30, 2018

Fiscal
Year

Proportion of the
Net Pension
Liability

2015
2016
2017
2018

0.03407%
0.07695%
0.06785%
0.06422%

Proportionate Share
of the Net Pension
Liability
$
$
$
$

2,120,073
2,111,093
2,356,951
2,531,736

Covered Payroll
$
$
$
$

Proportionate Share
of the Net Pension
Liability as a
Percentage of
Covered Payroll

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position as a
Percentage of the
Total Pension
Liability

193.89%
191.73%
251.46%
284.56%

70.93%
72.19%
70.38%
71.66%

1,093,443
1,101,073
937,320
889,697

Notes to Schedule:
Benefit Changes. In 2018, there was no benefit terms modified.
Changes in Assumptions. In 2018, the discount rate reduced from 7.65% to 7.15%.

(1)

Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only four years are shown.
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Yuima Municipal Water District
Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability (Asset) and Related Ratios
For the Measurement Periods Ended June 30
As of June 30, 2018

Measurement Period
Total OPEB Liability
Service Cost
Interest on the Total OPEB Liability
Actual and Expected Experience Difference
Changes in Assumptions
Changes in Benefit Terms
Benefit Payments

2017
$

Net Change in Total OPEB Liability
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning
Total OPEB Liability - Ending (a)
Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contribution - Employer
Net Investment Income
Benefit Payments
Administrative Expense

10,837
1,191,152
$

$

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b)
Net OPEB Liability (Asset) - Ending (a)-(b)
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total OPEB Liability
Covered-employee Payroll
Net OPEB Liability as a Percentage of Covered-employee Payroll

1,049
64,078
0
0
0
(54,290)

1,201,989

67,384
70,090
(54,290)
(654)
82,530
1,234,574

$
$

1,317,104
(115,115)
109.6%
137,234
(83.9)%

Notes to Schedule:
Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 75 is applicable. Future years’ information
will be displayed up to 10 years as information becomes available.
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Yuima Municipal Water District

Schedule of Contributions
CalPERS Pension Plan
Last Ten Years(1)
As of June 30, 2018

Contractually
Required
Contribution
(Actuarially
Determined)

Fiscal
Year
2015
2016
2017
2018

(1)

$
$
$
$

378,037
362,982
386,160
386,811

Contributions in
Relation to the
Actuarially
Determined
Contribution
$
$
$
$

(378,037)
(362,982)
(386,160)
(386,811)

Contribution
Deficiency (Excess)
$
$
$
$

0
0
0
0

Covered Payroll
$
$
$
$

1,101,073
937,320
889,697
1,010,367

Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only four years are shown.
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Contributions as a
Percentage of
Covered Payroll
34.33%
38.73%
43.40%
38.28%

Yuima Municipal Water District
Schedule of Contributions
Retiree Health Benefit Plan
Last Ten Fiscal Years(1)
As of June 30, 2018
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2018

Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC)
Contributions in Relation to the ADC
Contribution Deficiency (Excess)
Covered-Employee Payroll

$
$

0
(146,183)
(146,183)
334,712

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

43.7%

Notes to Schedule:
The actuarial methods and assumptions used to set the actuarially determined contributions for Fiscal Year 2018 were from the
June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation.
Methods and assumptions used to determine contributions:
Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method/Period
Asset Valuation Method
Discount Rate
Investment Rate of Return
General Inflation
Medical Trend

Mortality
Mortality Improvement
(1)

Entry Age Normal, Level Percentage of Payroll
Level Percent of Pay over a 20 Year Fixed Period
Market Value of Assets
5.50%
5.50%
2.75%
Non-Medicare - 7.5% for 2019, decreasing to an ultimate rate of 4.0% in 2076 and later
years.
Medicare - 6.5% for 2019, decreasing to an ultimate rate of 4.0% in 2076 and later years.
CalPERS 1997-2015 Experience Study
Mortality projected fully generational with Scale MP-2017

Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 75 is applicable. Future years’ information
will be displayed up to 10 years as information become available.
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Yuima Municipal Water District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget and Actual - Governmental Fund Type - Fire Protection
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final
REVENUES
Fire Protection Special Tax
Mitigation Fees
Contributions
Investment Earnings
Miscellaneous Revenues

$

252,353

252,353

225

225

46
6,421

303,803

303,803

70,727

(233,076)

EXPENDITURES
General and Administrative
Fire Protection

1,000
309,278

1,000
309,278

250
20,807

750
288,471

Total Expenditures

310,278

310,278

21,057

289,221

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

$

$

(6,475)

$

51,225

$

(6,475)

52,663
11,597

Variance
Favorable
(Unfavorable)
1,438
11,597
(252,353)
46
6,196

Total Revenues

51,225

Actual
Amounts

49,670

Fund Balance, Beginning

177,620

Fund Balance, End

$

56

227,290

$

$

56,145

Yuima Municipal Water District
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
Year Ended June 30, 2018
1.

BUDGETARY DATA
The budget process begins in March with input from staff with a series of goals and objectives in mind. The General
Manager and Department Heads discuss the budget process and departments submit budget requests. Budget requests are
refined by the Department Heads and approved by the General Manager. Following a series of Finance Committee
meetings with the Board of Directors a program is presented that is fiscally sound, prudent, and necessary for the
continued efficient operation of the District during the coming year. The proposed budget is then presented to the Board
of Directors for review and ultimate approval in June.
The appropriated budget is prepared by fund and object which is reflected in the budget to actual schedule on page 56.
The General Manager may make transfers of appropriations within the fund up to $15,000. Any other changes, requires
the approval of the Board of Directors. The legal level of budgetary control (i.e., the level at which expenditures may
not legally exceed appropriations) is at the fund level.
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